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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 
TELETECH HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Amounts in thousands, except share amounts)

(Unaudited)
 

   

March 31,
2015

  

December 31,
2014

 

ASSETS
     

Current assets
     

Cash and cash equivalents
 

$ 65,714
 

$ 77,316
 

Accounts receivable, net
 

295,719
 

276,432
 

Prepaids and other current assets
 

66,609
 

64,702
 

Deferred tax assets, net
 

22,783
 

22,501
 

Income tax receivable
 

4,638
 

4,532
 

Total current assets
 

455,463
 

445,483
 

      
Long-term assets

     

Property, plant and equipment, net
 

150,017
 

150,212
 

Goodwill
 

127,588
 

128,705
 

Deferred tax assets, net
 

30,035
 

31,512
 

Other intangible assets, net
 

56,528
 

59,905
 

Other long-term assets
 

44,852
 

36,658
 

Total long-term assets
 

409,020
 

406,992
 

Total assets
 

$ 864,483
 

$ 852,475
 

      
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

     

Current liabilities
     

Accounts payable
 

$ 31,785
 

$ 37,019
 

Accrued employee compensation and benefits
 

69,492
 

70,069
 

Other accrued expenses
 

32,969
 

34,430
 

Income taxes payable
 

9,298
 

10,141
 

Deferred tax liabilities, net
 

34
 

-
 

Deferred revenue
 

29,440
 

29,887
 

Other current liabilities
 

17,610
 

17,085
 

Total current liabilities
 

190,628
 

198,631
 

      
Long-term liabilities

     

Line of credit
 

126,000
 

100,000
 

Deferred tax liabilities, net
 

2,866
 

4,675
 

Deferred rent
 

9,589
 

8,956
 

Other long-term liabilities
 

77,248
 

74,149
 

Total long-term liabilities
 

215,703
 

187,780
 

Total liabilities
 

406,331
 

386,411
 

      
Commitments and contingencies (Note 10)

     

      
Mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interest

 
3,411

 
2,814

 

      
Stockholders’ equity

     

Preferred stock - $0.01 par value: 10,000,000 shares authorized; zero shares outstanding as of March 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014

 
-

 
-

 

Common stock - $0.01 par value; 150,000,000 shares authorized; 48,366,272 and 48,452,852 shares outstanding as
of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively

 
484

 
485

 

Additional paid-in capital
 

355,779
 

356,792
 

Treasury stock at cost: 33,685,981 and 33,599,401 shares as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014,
respectively

 
(530,818)

 
(527,595)

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
 

(66,020)
 

(52,274)
Retained earnings

 
687,497

 
677,859

 

Noncontrolling interest
 

7,819
 

7,983
 

Total stockholders’ equity
 

454,741
 

463,250
 

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity
 

$ 864,483
 

$ 852,475
 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TELETECH HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

(Amounts in thousands, except per share amounts)
(Unaudited)

 
  

Three Months Ended March 31,
 

  

2015
 

2014
 

      
Revenue

 

$ 325,521
 

$ 302,221
 

      
Operating expenses

     

Cost of services
 

232,984
 

213,787
 

Selling, general and administrative
 

50,237
 

50,367
 

Depreciation and amortization
 

15,363
 

13,170
 

Restructuring charges, net
 

809
 

540
 

Total operating expenses
 

299,393
 

277,864
 

      
Income from operations

 

26,128
 

24,357
 

      
Other income (expense)

     

Interest income
 

317
 

511
 

Interest expense
 

(1,698)
 

(1,690)
Other income (expense), net

 

(307)
 

1,001
 

Total other income (expense)
 

(1,688)
 

(178)
      
Income before income taxes

 

24,440
 

24,179
 

      
Provision for income taxes

 

(4,405)
 

(2,876)
      
Net income

 

20,035
 

21,303
 

      
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest

 

(1,263)
 

(1,085)
      
Net income attributable to TeleTech stockholders

 

$ 18,772
 

$ 20,218
 

      
Other comprehensive income (loss)

     

Net income
 

$ 20,035
 

$ 21,303
 

Foreign currency translation adjustments
 

(11,283)
 

(1,723)
Derivative valuation, gross

 

(1,645)
 

(3,917)
Derivative valuation, tax effect

 

1,493
 

1,382
 

Other, net of tax
 

(2,595)
 

276
 

Total other comprehensive income (loss)
 

(14,030)
 

(3,982)
Total comprehensive income (loss)

 

6,005
 

17,321
 

      
Less: Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interest

 

(806)
 

(992)
      

Comprehensive income attributable to TeleTech stockholders
 

$ 5,199
 

$ 16,329
 

      
Weighted average shares outstanding

     

Basic
 

48,370
 

50,045
 

Diluted
 

49,158
 

50,973
 

      
Net income per share attributable to TeleTech stockholders

     

Basic
 

$ 0.39
 

$ 0.40
 

Diluted
 

$ 0.38
 

$ 0.40
 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

 
2

Table of Contents
 

TELETECH HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders’ Equity

(Amounts in thousands)
(Unaudited)

 
  

Stockholders’ Equity of the Company
    

                      
              

Accumulated
       

  
Preferred Stock

  
Common Stock

   
Additional

 
Other

       

          
Treasury

 
Paid-in

 
Comprehensive

 
Retained

 
Noncontrolling

 
Total

 

  
Shares

 
Amount

 
Shares

 
Amount

 
Stock

 
Capital

 
Income (Loss)

 
Earnings

 
interest

 
Equity

 

                      
Balance as of December 31, 2014

 
-

 
$ -

 
48,453

 
$ 485

 
$ (527,595) $ 356,792

 
$ (52,274) $ 677,859

 
$ 7,983

 
$ 463,250

 

Net income
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

18,772
 

1,090
 

19,862
 

Dividends to shareholders
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

(8,710) -
 

(8,710)
Adjustments to redemption value of mandatorily
 

redeemable noncontrolling interest
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

(424) -
 

(424)
Dividends distributed to noncontrolling interest

   
-

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
(990) (990)

Foreign currency translation adjustments
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

(10,999) -
 

(284) (11,283)
Derivatives valuation, net of tax

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
(152) -

 
-

 
(152)

Vesting of restricted stock units
 

-
 

-
 

159
 

2
 

2,456
 

(3,766) -
 

-
 

-
 

(1,308)
Exercise of stock options

 
-

 
-

 
15

 
-

 
233

 
1

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
234

 

           



Excess tax benefit from equity-based awards - - - - - 111 - - - 111
Equity-based compensation expense

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
2,641

 
-

 
-

 
20

 
2,661

 

Purchases of common stock
 

-
 

-
 

(261) (3) (5,912) -
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

(5,915)
Other, net of tax

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
-

 
(2,595) -

 
-

 
(2,595)

                      

Balance as of March 31, 2015
 

-
 

$ -
 

48,366
 

$ 484
 

$ (530,818) $ 355,779
 

$ (66,020) $ 687,497
 

$ 7,819
 

$ 454,741
 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TELETECH HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Amounts in thousands)
(Unaudited)

 
  

Three Months Ended March 31,
 

  

2015
 

2014
 

      
Cash flows from operating activities

     

Net income
 

$ 20,035
 

$ 21,303
 

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
     

Depreciation and amortization
 

15,363
 

13,170
 

Amortization of contract acquisition costs
 

281
 

358
 

Amortization of debt issuance costs
 

178
 

170
 

Imputed interest expense and fair value adjustments to contingent consideration
 

209
 

200
 

Provision for doubtful accounts
 

53
 

113
 

Gain on disposal of assets
 

(35)
 

-
 

Impairment losses
 

-
 

-
 

Deferred income taxes
 

(1,479)
 

990
 

Excess tax benefit from equity-based awards
 

(409)
 

(788)
Equity-based compensation expense

 

2,690
 

3,160
 

Gain on foreign currency derivatives
 

87
 

(634)
      

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions:
     

Accounts receivable
 

(24,821)
 

(8,092)
Prepaids and other assets

 

1,849
 

1,618
 

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
 

(7,583)
 

(10,817)
Deferred revenue and other liabilities

 

(2,598)
 

(7,214)
Net cash provided by operating activities

 

3,820
 

13,537
 

      
Cash flows from investing activities

     

Proceeds from sale of long lived assets
 

-
 

135
 

Purchases of property, plant and equipment, net of acquisitions
 

(13,038)
 

(15,095)
Investment in securities

 

(9,000)
 

-
 

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired of zero and $812, respectively
 

(102)
 

(8,160)
Net cash used in investing activities

 

(22,140)
 

(23,120)
      
Cash flows from financing activities

     

Proceeds from line of credit
 

573,800
 

632,900
 

Payments on line of credit
 

(547,800)
 

(632,900)
Payments on other debt

 

(778)
 

(1,525)
Payments of contingent consideration related to acquisitions

 

(1,000)
 

(2,189)
Dividends paid to shareholders

 

(8,710)
 

-
 

Payments to noncontrolling interest
 

(990)
 

(990)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options

 

234
 

12
 

Excess tax benefit from equity-based awards
 

409
 

788
 

Purchase of treasury stock
  

(5,915)
  

(20,466)
Net cash used in financing activities

 

9,250
 

(24,370)
      
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

 

(2,532)
 

(3,687)
      
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents

 

(11,602)
 

(37,640)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

 

77,316
 

158,017
 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period
 

$ 65,714
 

$ 120,377
 

      
Supplemental disclosures

     

Cash paid for interest
 

$ 1,340
 

$ 982
 

Cash paid for income taxes
 

$ 2,803
 

$ 2,834
 

      
Non-cash investing and financing activities

     

Acquisition of equipment through increase in accounts payable
 

$ 1,704
 

$ 941
 

Contract acquisition costs credited to accounts receivable
 

$ -
 

$ 1,000
 

 
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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TELETECH HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)

 
(1)                                 OVERVIEW AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
 
Summary of Business
 
TeleTech Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries (“TeleTech” or the “Company”) is a customer engagement management services provider,
delivering integrated consulting, technology, growth and customer care solutions on a global scale. Our suite of product and service capabilities
allows us to design and deliver enhanced, value-driven customer experiences across numerous communication channels. TeleTech’s 44,000
employees serve clients in the automotive, communication, financial services, government, healthcare, logistics, media and entertainment,
retail, technology, transportation and travel industries via operations in the U.S., Australia, Belgium, Brazil, Bulgaria, Canada, Costa Rica,
Germany, Ireland, Israel, Lebanon, Macedonia, Mexico, New Zealand, the Philippines, Poland, Singapore, South Africa, Thailand, Turkey, the
United Arab Emirates, and the United Kingdom.
 
Basis of Presentation
 
The Consolidated Financial Statements are comprised of the accounts of TeleTech, its wholly owned subsidiaries, its 55% equity owned
subsidiary Percepta, LLC, and its 80% interest in iKnowtion, LLC. All intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.
 
The unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements do not include all of the disclosures required by accounting principles generally accepted in
the U.S. (“GAAP”), pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). The unaudited Consolidated
Financial Statements reflect all adjustments which, in the opinion of management, are necessary to present fairly the consolidated financial
position of the Company and the consolidated results of operations and comprehensive income (loss) and the consolidated cash flows of the
Company. Operating results for the periods presented are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the year ending
December 31, 2015.
 
These unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements should be read in conjunction with the Company’s audited Consolidated financial
Statements and footnotes thereto included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014.
 
Use of Estimates
 
The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions
in determining the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities at the date of the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. On an on-going basis, the Company evaluates its
estimates including those related to derivatives and hedging activities, income taxes including the valuation allowance for deferred tax assets,
self-insurance reserves, litigation reserves, restructuring reserves, allowance for doubtful accounts, contingent consideration, and valuation of
goodwill, long-lived and intangible assets. The Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that
are believed to be reasonable, the results of which form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities.
Actual results may differ materially from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions.
 
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
 
In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-03, “Simplifying the Presentation of Debt Issuance Costs”.  ASU 2015-03 requires all costs
incurred in connection with the issuance of debt to be presented in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the carrying value of the
associated debt liability. This ASU is effective for interim and annual periods beginning on or after December 15, 2015 and early adoption is
permitted. The Company is evaluating when it will adopt the standard but does not expect the adoption of this standard to have a material
impact on its financial position, results of operation or related disclosures.
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TELETECH HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)
 

(2)        ACQUISITIONS & INVESTMENTS
 
rogenSi
 
In the third quarter of 2014, as an addition to the Customer Strategy Services (“CSS”) segment, the Company acquired substantially all
operating assets of rogenSi Worldwide PTY, Ltd., a global leadership, change management, sales, performance training and consulting
company.
 
The total purchase price was $34.4 million, subject to certain working capital adjustments, and consists of $18.1 million in cash at closing and
an estimated $14.5 million in three earn-out payments, contingent on the acquired companies and TeleTech’s CSS segment achieving certain
agreed earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”) targets, as defined in the sale and purchase agreement.
Additionally, the estimated purchase price included a $1.8 million hold-back payment for contingencies as defined in the sale and purchase
agreement which will be paid in the first quarter of 2016, if required. The total contingent consideration possible per the sale and purchase
agreement ranges from zero to $17.6 million and the earn-out payments are payable in early 2015, 2016 and 2017, based on July 1, 2014
through December 31, 2014, and full year 2015 and 2016 performance, respectively.
 
The fair value of the contingent consideration was measured by applying a probability weighted discounted cash flow model based on
significant inputs not observable in the market (Level 3 inputs). Key assumptions include a discount rate of 4.6% and expected future value of
payments of $15.3 million. The $15.3 million of expected future payments was calculated using a probability weighted EBITDA assessment
with the highest probability associated with rogenSi achieving the targeted EBITDA for each earn-out year. As of the acquisition date, the fair
value of the contingent consideration was approximately $14.5 million. During the fourth quarter of 2014, the Company recorded a fair value
adjustment of the contingent consideration of $0.5 million based on revised estimates noting higher probability of exceeding the EBITDA



targets (see Note 7). As of March 31, 2015, the fair value of the contingent consideration was $15.3 million, of which $11.3 million and $4.0
million were included in Other accrued expenses and Other long-term liabilities in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets,
respectively.
 
The following summarizes the preliminary estimated fair values of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the acquisition
date (in thousands):
 

  

Preliminary
Estimate of

Acquisition Date
Fair Value

 

Cash
 

$ 2,670
 

Accounts receivable, net
 

6,417
 

Other assets
 

2,880
 

Property, plant and equipment
 

578
 

Deferred tax assets, net
 

449
 

Customer relationships
 

9,348
 

Goodwill
 

20,927
 

  

43,269
 

    
Accounts payable

 

708
 

Accrued employee compensation and benefits
 

2,203
 

Accrued expenses
 

1,146
 

Other
 

4,843
 

  

8,900
 

    
Total purchase price

 

$ 34,369
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TELETECH HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)
 

The estimates of fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are preliminary, pending completion of a valuation, thus are
subject to revisions that may result in adjustments to the values presented above.
 
The rogenSi customer relationships have been estimated based on similar acquisitions and are amortized over an estimated useful life of five
years. The goodwill recognized from the rogenSi acquisition is estimated to be attributable, but not limited to, the acquired workforce and
expected synergies within CSS. None of the tax basis of the acquired intangibles and goodwill will be deductible for income tax purposes. The
acquired goodwill and the operating results of rogenSi are reported, as its own reporting unit, within the CSS segment from the date of
acquisition.
 
Sofica
 
In the first quarter of 2014, as an addition to the Customer Management Services (“CMS”) segment, the Company acquired a 100% interest in
Sofica Group, a Bulgarian joint stock company (“Sofica”). Sofica provides customer lifecycle management and other business process services
across multiple channels in multiple sites in over 18 languages.
 
The purchase price of $14.2 million included $9.4 million in cash consideration (including working capital adjustments) and an estimated $3.8
million in earn-out payments, payable in 2015 and 2016, contingent on Sofica achieving specified EBITDA targets, as defined by the stock
purchase agreement. The total contingent consideration possible per the stock purchase agreement ranges from zero to $7.5 million.
Additionally, the purchase price includes a $1.0 million hold-back payment for contingencies as defined in the stock purchase agreement which
will be paid in the second quarter of 2016, if required.
 
The fair value of the contingent consideration was measured based on significant inputs not observable in the market (Level 3 inputs). Key
assumptions include a discount rate of 5.0% and expected future value of payments of $4.0 million. The $4.0 million of expected future
payments was calculated using a probability weighted EBITDA assessment with the highest probability associated with Sofica achieving the
targeted EBITDA for each earn-out year. As of the acquisition date, the fair value of the contingent consideration was approximately $3.8
million. During the third and fourth quarters of 2014, the Company recorded fair value adjustments of the contingent consideration of $1.8
million and $0.6 million, respectively based on revised estimates noting higher probability of exceeding the EBITDA targets (see Note 7). As of
March 31, 2015, the fair value of the contingent consideration was $6.4 million, of which $3.6 million and $2.8 million were included in Other
accrued expenses and Other long-term liabilities in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets, respectively.
 
Financial Impact of Acquired Businesses
 
The acquired businesses purchased in 2014 noted above contributed revenues of $12.6 million and income from operations of $1.1 million,
inclusive of $0.7 million of acquired intangible amortization, to the Company for the three months ended March 31, 2015.
 
Investments
 
Café X
 
In the first quarter of 2015, the Company invested $9.0 million in CafeX Communications, Inc. (“CafeX”) through the purchase of a portion of
the Series B Preferred Stock of CafeX. After the transaction, the Company owns 17.3% of the total equity of CafeX. CaféX is a provider of
omni-channel web-based real time communication (WebRTC) solutions that enhance mobile applications and websites with in-app video
communication and screen share technology to increase customer satisfaction and enterprise efficiency. TeleTech anticipates deploying the



CafeX technology as part of the TeleTech customer experience offerings within the CMS business segment and as part of its Humanify
platform.

 
7

Table of Contents
 

TELETECH HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)
 

(3)        SEGMENT INFORMATION
 
The Company reports the following four segments:
 

· the CMS segment includes the customer experience delivery solutions which integrate innovative technology with highly-trained
customer experience professionals to optimize the customer experience across all channels and all stages of the customer lifecycle
from an onshore, offshore or work-from-home environment;

  
· the CGS segment provides technology-enabled sales and marketing solutions that support revenue generation across the customer

lifecycle, including sales advisory, search engine optimization, digital demand generation, lead qualification, and acquisition sales,
growth and retention services;

  
· the CTS segment includes operational and design consulting, systems integration, and cloud and on-premise managed services, the

requirements needed to design, deliver and maintain best-in-class multichannel customer engagement platforms; and
  
· the CSS segment provides professional services in customer experience strategy, customer intelligence analytics, system and

operational process optimization, and culture development and knowledge management.
 

The Company allocates to each segment its portion of corporate operating expenses. All intercompany transactions between the reported
segments for the periods presented have been eliminated.
 
The following tables present certain financial data by segment (in thousands):
 
Quarter Ended March 31, 2015

              

  

Gross
Revenue

  

Intersegment
Sales

  
Net Revenue

  

Depreciation
&

Amortization
  

Income (Loss)
from

Operations
Customer Management Services $  243,009 

 
$  - 

 
$  243,009 

 
$  10,797 

 
$  21,702 

Customer Growth Services
 

 25,956 
  

 - 
  

 25,956 
  

 1,485 
  

 26 
Customer Technology Services

 
 35,721 

  
 (7)

  
 35,714 

  
 2,164 

  
 2,009 

Customer Strategy Services
 

 20,842 
  

 - 
  

 20,842 
  

 917 
  

 2,391 

Total $  325,528 
 

$  (7)
 

$  325,521 
 

$  15,363 
 

$  26,128 

               
Quarter Ended March 31, 2014

              

  

Gross
Revenue

  

Intersegment
Sales

  
Net Revenue

  

Depreciation
&

Amortization
  

Income (Loss)
from

Operations
Customer Management Services $  227,924 

 
$  - 

 
$  227,924 

 
$  9,465 

 
$  20,823 

Customer Growth Services
 

 28,905 
  

 - 
  

 28,905 
  

 1,556 
  

 1,770 
Customer Technology Services

 
 32,779 

  
 (3)

  
 32,776 

  
 1,715 

  
 311 

Customer Strategy Services
 

 12,616 
  

 - 
  

 12,616 
  

 434 
  

 1,453 

Total $  302,224 
 

$  (3)
 

$  302,221 
 

$  13,170 
 

$  24,357 

 
  

Three Months Ended March 31,
 

  

2015
 

2014
 

Capital Expenditures
     

Customer Management Services
 

$ 9,447
 

$ 9,912
 

Customer Growth Services
 

1,305
 

380
 

Customer Technology Services
 

2,282
 

4,631
 

Customer Strategy Services
 

4
 

172
 

Total
 

$ 13,038
 

$ 15,095
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TELETECH HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)
 

  

March 31, 2015
 

December 31, 2014
 

Total Assets
     

Customer Management Services
 

$ 533,622
 

$ 514,957
 

Customer Growth Services
 

83,240
 

88,394
 

Customer Technology Services
 

158,822
 

159,441
 

Customer Strategy Services
 

88,799
 

89,683
 

  
 



Total $ 864,483 $ 852,475
      
  

March 31, 2015
 

December 31, 2014
 

Goodwill
     

Customer Management Services
 

$ 25,410
 

$ 25,871
 

Customer Growth Services
 

30,395
 

30,395
 

Customer Technology Services
 

42,709
 

42,709
 

Customer Strategy Services
 

29,074
 

29,730
 

Total
 

$ 127,588
 

$ 128,705
 

 
The following table presents revenue based upon the geographic location where the services are provided (in thousands):
 
  

Three Months Ended March 31,
 

  

2015
 

2014
 

United States
 

$ 171,653
 

$ 146,469
 

Philippines
 

84,987
 

86,666
 

Latin America
 

40,554
 

42,046
 

Europe / Middle East / Africa
 

19,313
 

19,217
 

Asia Pacific
 

7,674
 

6,400
 

Canada
 

1,340
 

1,423
 

Total Revenue
 

$ 325,521
 

$ 302,221
 

 
(4)        SIGNIFICANT CLIENTS AND OTHER CONCENTRATIONS
 
The Company had one client that contributed in excess of 10% of total revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014. This
client operates in the communications industry and is included in the Customer Management Services segment. This client contributed 10.9%
and 11.6% of total revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. This client had an outstanding receivable
balance of $37.6 million and $32.3 million as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
 
The loss of one or more of its significant clients could have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business, operating results, or financial
condition. The Company does not require collateral from its clients. To limit the Company’s credit risk, management performs periodic credit
evaluations of its clients and maintains allowances for uncollectible accounts and may require pre-payment for services. Although the Company
is impacted by economic conditions in various industry segments, management does not believe significant credit risk existed as of March 31,
2015.
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(5)                                 GOODWILL
 
Goodwill consisted of the following (in thousands):
 

  

December 31,
2014

 

Acquisitions/
Adjustments

 
Impairments

 

Effect of
Foreign

Currency
 

March 31,
2015

 

            
Customer Management Services

 
$ 25,871

 
$ -

 
$ -

 
$ (461)

 
$ 25,410

 

Customer Growth Services
 

30,395
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

30,395
 

Customer Technology Services
 

42,709
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

42,709
 

Customer Strategy Services
 

29,730
 

68
 

-
 

(724)
 

29,074
 

Total
 

$ 128,705
 

$ 68
 

$ -
 

$ (1,185)
 

$ 127,588
 

 
The Company performs a goodwill impairment assessment on at least an annual basis. The Company conducts its annual goodwill impairment
assessment during the fourth quarter, or more frequently, if indicators of impairment exist.
 
The Company concluded that goodwill for all reporting units was not impaired at December 1, 2014. While no impairment indicators were
identified, due to the small margin of fair value in excess of carrying value for two reporting units, Revana (approximately 6.0%) and WebMetro
(approximately 11%), these reporting units remain at considerable risk for future impairment if projected operating results are not met or other
inputs into the fair value measurement change.
 
At March 31, 2015, the Company updated its quantitative assessment of these reporting units fair value using an income based approach. The
determination of fair value requires significant judgments including estimation of future cash flows, which is dependent on internal forecasts,
estimation of the long-term growth rates for the businesses, the useful lives over which the cash flows will occur and determination of
appropriate discount rates (based in part on the Company’s weighted average cost of capital). Changes in these estimates and assumptions
could materially affect the determination of fair value and/or conclusions on goodwill impairment for each reporting unit. As of March 31, 2015,
the updated fair values continue to exceed the carrying values for Revana (approximately 12%) and WebMetro (approximately 17%). The
Company will continue to review the calculated fair value of these reporting units until the fair value is substantially in excess of its carrying
value.
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(6)                                 DERIVATIVES
 
Cash Flow Hedges
 
The Company enters into foreign exchange and interest rate related derivatives. Foreign exchange derivatives entered into consist of forward
and option contracts to reduce the Company’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations that are associated with forecasted
revenue earned in foreign locations. Interest rate derivatives consist of interest rate swaps to reduce the Company’s exposure to interest rate
fluctuations associated with its variable rate debt. Upon proper qualification, these contracts are designated as cash flow hedges. It is the
Company’s policy to only enter into derivative contracts with investment grade counterparty financial institutions, and correspondingly, the fair
value of derivative assets consider, among other factors, the creditworthiness of these counterparties. Conversely, the fair value of derivative
liabilities reflects the Company’s creditworthiness. As of March 31, 2015, the Company had not experienced, nor does it anticipate, any issues
related to derivative counterparty defaults. The following table summarizes the aggregate unrealized net gain or loss in Accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 (in thousands and net of tax):
 
  

Three Months Ended March 31,
 

  

2015
 

2014
 

      
Aggregate unrealized net gain/(loss) at beginning of year

 

$ (18,345)
 

$ (8,352)
 

Add: Net gain/(loss) from change in fair value of cash flow hedges
 

(1,291)
 

(3,649)
 

Less: Net (gain)/loss reclassified to earnings from effective hedges
 

1,139
 

1,115
 

Aggregate unrealized net gain/(loss) at end of period
 

$ (18,497)
 

$ (10,886)
 

 
The Company’s foreign exchange cash flow hedging instruments as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are summarized as follows (in
thousands). All hedging instruments are forward contracts.
 

As of March 31, 2015
 

Local Currency
Notional
Amount

 

U.S. Dollar
Notional
Amount

 

% Maturing in
the Next 12

Months
 

Contracts
Maturing
Through

 

Canadian Dollar
 

750
 

$ 719
 

100.0 %
 

June 2015
 

Philippine Peso
 

17,063,000
 

386,570 36.8 %
 

February 2020
 

Mexican Peso
 

2,528,000
 

176,073
 

28.5 %
 

February 2020
 

    

$ 563,362
     

          

As of December 31, 2014
 

Local Currency 
Notional 
Amount

 

U.S. Dollar 
Notional 
Amount

     

Canadian Dollar
 

1,500
 

$ 1,441
     

Philippine Peso
 

17,428,000
 

398,046
    

Mexican Peso
 

2,532,000
 

179,089
     

New Zealand Dollar
 

490
 

381
     

    

$ 578,957
     

 
                Includes contracts to purchase Philippine pesos in exchange for New Zealand dollars and Australian dollars, which are translated into

equivalent U.S. dollars on March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014.
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The Company’s interest rate swap arrangements as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 were as follows:
 

  

Notional
Amount

 

Variable Rate
Received

 

Fixed Rate
Paid

 

Contract
Commencement

Date
 

Contract
Maturity

Date
 

As of March 31, 2015
 

$ 25 million
 

1 - month LIBOR
 

2.55 %
 

April 2012
 

April 2016
 

and December 31, 2014
 

15 million
 

1 - month LIBOR
 

3.14 %
 

May 2012
 

May 2017
 

  

$ 40 million
         

 
Fair Value Hedges
 
The Company enters into foreign exchange forward contracts to economically hedge against foreign currency exchange gains and losses on
certain receivables and payables of the Company’s foreign operations. Changes in the fair value of derivative instruments designated as fair
value hedges are recognized in earnings in Other income (expense), net. As of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 the total notional
amount of the Company’s forward contracts used as fair value hedges were $262.6 million and $242.5 million, respectively.
 
Derivative Valuation and Settlements
 
The Company’s derivatives as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 were as follows (in thousands):
 
  

March 31, 2015
 

Designation:
 

Designated as Hedging Instruments
 

Not Designated
as Hedging
Instruments

 
  

  

(1)

(1)

(1)



Derivative contract type: Foreign
Exchange

Interest Rate Foreign
Exchange

Derivative classification:
 

Cash Flow
 

Cash Flow
 

Fair Value
 

        
Fair value and location of derivative in the Consolidated Balance Sheet:

       

Prepaids and other current assets
 

$ 1,758
 

$ -
 

$ 904
 

Other long-term assets
 

228
 

-
 

-
 

Other current liabilities
 

(13,394)
 

(971)
 

(197)
 

Other long-term liabilities
 

(19,534)
 

(339)
 

-
 

Total fair value of derivatives, net
 

$ (30,942)
 

$ (1,310)
 

$ 707
 

 
  

December 31, 2014
 

Designation:
 

Designated as Hedging Instruments
 

Not Designated
as Hedging
Instruments

 

Derivative contract type:
 

Foreign
Exchange

 
Interest Rate

 

Foreign
Exchange

 

Derivative classification:
 

Cash Flow
 

Cash Flow
 

Fair Value
 

        
Fair value and location of derivative in the Consolidated Balance Sheet:

       

Prepaids and other current assets
 

$ 192
 

$ -
 

$ 797
 

Other long-term assets
 

389
 

-
 

-
 

Other current liabilities
 

(12,680)
 

(988)
 

(5)
 

Other long-term liabilities
 

(17,070)
 

(452)
 

-
 

Total fair value of derivatives, net
 

$ (29,169)
 

$ (1,440)
 

$ 792
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The effects of derivative instruments on the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the three months ended March 31,
2015 and 2014 were as follows (in thousands):
 
  

Three Months Ended March 31,
 

  
2015

 
2014

 

Designation:
 

Designated as Hedging
Instruments

 

Designated as Hedging
Instruments

 

Derivative contract type:
 

Foreign
Exchange

 
Interest Rate

 

Foreign
Exchange

 
Interest Rate

 

Derivative classification:
 

Cash Flow
 

Cash Flow
 

Cash Flow
 

Cash Flow
 

          
Amount of gain or (loss) recognized in other comprehensive income (loss) - effective

portion, net of tax:
 

$ 1,220
 

$ (71)
 

$ (3,592)
 

$ (57)
 

          
Amount and location of net gain or (loss) reclassified from accumulated OCI to income -

effective portion:
         

Revenue
 

$ (1,708)
 

$ -
 

$ (1,570)
 

$ -
 

Interest Expense
 

-
 

(257)
 

-
 

(258)
 

 
  

Three Months Ended March 31,
 

  
2015

 
2014

 

Designation:
 

Not Designated as Hedging Instruments
 

Not Designated as Hedging Instruments
 

Derivative contract type:
 

Foreign Exchange
 

Foreign Exchange
 

          
Derivative classification:

 
Forward Contracts

 
Fair Value

 
Forward Contracts

 
Fair Value

 

          
Amount and location of net gain or (loss) recognized in the Consolidated Statement

of Comprehensive Income:
         

Costs of services
 

$ -
 

$ -
 

$ -
 

$ -
 

Other income (expense), net
 

$ -
 

$ 80
 

$ -
 

$ 619
 

 
(7)                                 FAIR VALUE
 
The authoritative guidance for fair value measurements establishes a three-level fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used to measure
fair value. This hierarchy requires that the Company maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The
three levels of inputs used to measure fair value are as follows:
 

Level 1 — Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
 
Level 2 — Observable inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1, such as quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in

active markets, similar assets and liabilities in markets that are not active or can be corroborated by observable market
data.

 
Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are significant to the fair value of the assets or

liabilities. This includes certain pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies and similar techniques that use
significant unobservable inputs.

 
The following presents information as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 for the Company’s assets and liabilities required to be
measured at fair value on a recurring basis, as well as the fair value hierarchy used to determine their fair value.
 
Accounts Receivable and Payable - The amounts recorded in the accompanying balance sheets approximate fair value because of their short-
term nature.
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Debt - The Company’s debt consists primarily of the Company’s Credit Agreement, which permits floating-rate borrowings based upon the
current Prime Rate or LIBOR plus a credit spread as determined by the Company’s leverage ratio calculation (as defined in the Credit
Agreement). As of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the Company had $126.0 million and $100.0 million, respectively, of borrowings
outstanding under the Credit Agreement. During the first quarter of 2015 outstanding borrowings accrued interest at an average rate of 1.2%
per annum, excluding unused commitment fees. The amounts recorded in the accompanying Balance Sheets approximate fair value due to the
variable nature of the debt.
 
Derivatives - Net derivative assets (liabilities) are measured at fair value on a recurring basis. The portfolio is valued using models based on
market observable inputs, including both forward and spot foreign exchange rates, interest rates, implied volatility, and counterparty credit risk,
including the ability of each party to execute its obligations under the contract. As of March 31, 2015, credit risk did not materially change the
fair value of the Company’s derivative contracts.
 
The following is a summary of the Company’s fair value measurements for its net derivative assets (liabilities) as of March 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014 (in thousands):
 
As of March 31, 2015
  

Fair Value Measurements Using
   

  

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
Identical Assets

 

Significant Other
Observable Inputs

 

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
   

  
(Level 1)

 
(Level 2)

 
(Level 3)

 
At Fair Value

 

Cash flow hedges
 

$ -
 

$ (30,942)
 

$ -
 

$ (30,942)
 

Interest rate swaps
 

-
 

(1,310)
 

-
 

(1,310)
 

Fair value hedges
 

-
 

707
 

-
 

707
 

Total net derivative asset (liability)
 

$ -
 

$ (31,545)
 

$ -
 

$ (31,545)
 

 
As of December 31, 2014
  

Fair Value Measurements Using
   

  

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
Identical Assets

 

Significant Other
Observable Inputs

 

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
   

  
(Level 1)

 
(Level 2)

 
(Level 3)

 
At Fair Value

 

Cash flow hedges
 

$ -
 

$ (29,169)
 

$ -
 

$ (29,169)
 

Interest rate swaps
 

-
 

(1,440)
 

-
 

(1,440)
 

Fair value hedges
 

-
 

792
 

-
 

792
 

Total net derivative asset (liability)
 

$ -
 

$ (29,817)
 

$ -
 

$ (29,817)
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The following is a summary of the Company’s fair value measurements as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 (in thousands):
 
As of March 31, 2015

       

  
Fair Value Measurements Using

 

        

  

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
Identical Assets

 

Significant Other
Observable Inputs

 

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
 

  
(Level 1)

 
(Level 2)

 
(Level 3)

 

Assets
       

Derivative instruments, net
 

$ -
 

$ -
 

$ -
 

Total assets
 

$ -
 

$ -
 

$ -
 

        
Liabilities

       

Deferred compensation plan liability
 

$ -
 

$ (9,272)
 

$ -
 

Derivative instruments, net
 

-
 

(31,545)
 

-
 

Contingent consideration
 

-
 

-
 

(23,953)
 

Total liabilities
 

$ -
 

$ (40,817)
 

$ (23,953)
 

 
 
As of December 31, 2014

       

  
Fair Value Measurements Using

 

  

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets for
Identical Assets

 

Significant Other
Observable Inputs

 

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
 

  
(Level 1)

 
(Level 2)

 
(Level 3)

 

Assets
       

Derivative instruments, net
 

$ -
 

$ -
 

$ -
 

Total assets
 

$ -
 

$ -
 

$ -
 

        
Liabilities

       

Deferred compensation plan liability
 

$ -
 

$ (8,478)
 

$ -
 

Derivative instruments, net
 

-
 

(29,817)
 

-
 

Contingent consideration
 

-
 

-
 

(24,744)
 

Total liabilities
 

$ -
 

$ (38,295)
 

$ (24,744)
 

 



Deferred Compensation Plan — The Company maintains a non-qualified deferred compensation plan structured as a Rabbi trust for certain
eligible employees. Participants in the deferred compensation plan select from a menu of phantom investment options for their deferral dollars
offered by the Company each year, which are based upon changes in value of complementary, defined market investments. The deferred
compensation liability represents the combined values of market investments against which participant accounts are tracked.
 
Contingent Consideration — The Company recorded contingent consideration related to the acquisitions of iKnowtion, Guidon, TSG,
WebMetro, Sofica and rogenSi. These contingent payables were recognized at fair value using a discounted cash flow approach and a
discount rate of 21.0%, 21.0%, 4.6%, 5.3%, 5.0% or 4.6%, respectively. The discount rates vary dependant on the specific risks of each
acquisition including the country of operation, the nature of services and complexity of the acquired business, and other similar factors. These
measurements were based on significant inputs not observable in the market. The Company will accrete interest expense each period using
the effective interest method until the future value of these contingent payables reaches their expected future value of $24.7 million. Interest
expense related to all recorded purchase price payables is included in Interest expense in the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive
Income (Loss).
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During the second and fourth quarters of 2014, the Company recorded fair value adjustments of the contingent consideration associated with
the TSG reporting unit within the CTS segment based on revised estimates noting achievement of the targeted 2014 and 2015 EBITDA was
remote. Accordingly, a $4.0 million and $3.9 million, respectively, reductions in the payable were recorded as of June 30, 2014 and
December 31, 2014 and were included in Other income (expense) in the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss).
 
During the third and fourth quarters of 2014, the Company recorded fair value adjustments of the contingent consideration associated with the
Sofica reporting unit within the CMS segment of $1.8 million and $0.6 million, respectively, as the Company’s revised estimates reflected Sofica
exceeding its EBITDA targets for both 2014 and 2015. Accordingly, the $1.8 million and $0.6 million increases in the payable were recorded as
of September 30, 2014 and December 31, 2014 and were included in Other income (expense) in the Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income (Loss).
 
During the third quarter of 2014, the Company recorded a fair value adjustment of the contingent consideration associated with the WebMetro
reporting unit within the CGS segment based on revised estimates noting achievement of the targeted 2014 EBITDA was remote. Accordingly,
a $1.7 million reduction in the payable was recorded as of September 30, 2014 and was included in Other income (expense) in the
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss).
 
During the fourth quarter of 2014, the Company recorded a fair value adjustment of the contingent consideration associated with the rogenSi
reporting unit within the CSS segment based on revised estimates reflecting rogenSi exceeding its EBITDA targets for 2014. Accordingly a $0.5
million increase in the payable was recorded as of December 31, 2014 and was included in Other income (expense) in the Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss).
 
During the first quarter of 2015, the Company assessed the contingent payables associated with all of the acquisitions and determined that no
material adjustments were necessary.
 
A rollforward of the activity in the Company’s fair value of the contingent consideration payable is as follows (in thousands):
 

  

December 31,
2014

 
Acquisitions

 
Payments

 

Imputed
Interest /

Adjustments
 

March 31,
2015

 

            
iKnowtion

 
$ 2,265

 
$ -

 
$ -

 
$ 15

 
$ 2,280

 

Guidon
 

1,000
 

-
 

(1,000)
 

-
 

-
 

TSG
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

WebMetro
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

Sofica
 

6,317
 

-
 

-
 

80
 

6,397
 

rogenSi
 

15,162
 

-
 

-
 

114
 

15,276
 

Total
 

$ 24,744
 

$ -
 

$ (1,000)
 

$ 209
 

$ 23,953
 

 
Subsequent to March 31, 2015, an additional $8.1 million of payments were completed in accordance with the acquisition agreements.
 
(8)                                 INCOME TAXES
 
The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with the accounting literature for income taxes, which requires recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities for the expected future income tax consequences of transactions that have been included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the financial
statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. Quarterly,
the Company assesses the likelihood that its net deferred tax assets will be recovered. Based on the weight of all available evidence, both
positive and negative, the Company records a valuation allowance against deferred tax assets when it is more-likely-than-not that a future tax
benefit will not be realized.
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During the first quarter of 2014, a benefit of $1.2 million was recorded due to the closing of statutes of limitations in Canada.
 
As of March 31, 2015, the Company had $52.8 million of gross deferred tax assets (after a $10.4 million valuation allowance) and net deferred
tax assets (after deferred tax liabilities) of $49.9 million related to the U.S. and international tax jurisdictions whose recoverability is dependent
upon future profitability.
 
The effective tax rate for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 was 18.0% and 11.9%, respectively.
 
The Company’s U.S. income tax returns filed for the tax years ending December 31, 2011 to present remain open tax years. The Company has
been notified of the intent to audit, or is currently under audit, of income taxes in the U.S. specifically for the acquired entity Technology
Solutions Group for the tax year 2012 (prior to acquisition) and Canada for tax years 2009 and 2010. Although the outcome of examinations by
taxing authorities are always uncertain, it is the opinion of management that the resolution of these audits will not have a material effect on the
Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements.
 
(9)                                 RESTRUCTURING CHARGES AND IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
 
Restructuring Charges
 
During the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company undertook a number of restructuring activities primarily associated
with reductions in the Company’s capacity and workforce in several of its segments to better align the capacity and workforce with current
business needs.
 
A summary of the expenses recorded in Restructuring, net in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for
the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, is as follows (in thousands):
 
  

Three Months Ended March 31,
 

  

2015
 

2014
 

Reduction in force
     

Customer Management Services
 

$ 776
 

$ 511
 

Customer Growth Services
 

-
 

29
 

Customer Technology Services
 

-
 

-
 

Customer Strategy Services
 

33
 

-
 

Total
 

$ 809
 

$ 540
 

 
A rollforward of the activity in the Company’s restructuring accruals is as follows (in thousands):
 

  

Closure of
Delivery Centers

 

Reduction in
Force

 

Total
 

        
Balance as of December 31, 2014

 

$ -
 

$ 2,071
 

$ 2,071
 

Expense
 

-
 

809
 

809
 

Payments
 

-
 

(1,208) (1,208)
Changes in estimates

 

-
 

-
 

-
 

Balance as of March 31, 2015
 

$ -
 

$ 1,672
 

$ 1,672
 

 
The remaining restructuring accruals are expected to be paid or extinguished during 2015 and are all classified as current liabilities within Other
accrued expenses in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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Impairment Losses
 
During each of the periods presented, the Company evaluated the recoverability of its leasehold improvement assets at certain delivery
centers. An asset is considered to be impaired when the anticipated undiscounted future cash flows of its asset group are estimated to be less
than the asset group’s carrying value. The amount of impairment recognized is the difference between the carrying value of the asset group
and its fair value. To determine fair value, the Company used Level 3 inputs in its discounted cash flows analysis. Assumptions included the
amount and timing of estimated future cash flows and assumed discount rates. During the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, the
Company recognized no losses related to leasehold improvement assets.
 
(10)                          COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
 
Credit Facility
 
In the second quarter of 2013, the Company entered into a $700.0 million, five-year, multi-currency revolving credit facility (the “Credit
Agreement”) with a syndicate of lenders which includes an accordion feature that permits the Company to request an increase in total
commitments up to $1.0 billion, under certain conditions. Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, KeyBank National Association, Bank of America Merrill
Lynch, BBVA Compass and HSBC Bank USA, National Association served as Joint Lead Arrangers. The Credit Agreement amends and
restates in its entirety the Company’s prior credit facility entered into during 2010 and amended in 2012.
 
The Credit Agreement provides for a secured revolving credit facility that matures on June 3, 2018 with an initial maximum aggregate
commitment of $700.0 million. At the Company’s discretion, direct borrowing options under the Credit Agreement include (i) Eurodollar loans
with one, two, three, and six month terms, and/or (ii) overnight base rate loans. The Credit Agreement also provides for a sub-limit for loans or
letters of credit in both U.S. dollars and certain foreign currencies, with direct foreign subsidiary borrowing capabilities up to 50% of the total



commitment amount. The Company may increase the maximum aggregate commitment under the Credit Agreement to $1.0 billion if certain
conditions are satisfied, including that the Company is not in default under the Credit Agreement at the time of the increase and that the
Company obtains the commitment of the lenders participating in the increase.
 
The Company primarily utilizes its Credit Agreement to fund working capital, general operations, stock repurchases and other strategic
activities, such as the acquisitions described in Note 2. As of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the Company had borrowings of $126.0
million and $100.0 million, respectively, under its Credit Agreement, and its average daily utilization was $297.0 million and $270.9 million for
the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. After consideration for issued letters of credit under the Credit Agreement,
totaling $3.2 million, the Company’s remaining borrowing capacity was $570.8 million as of March 31, 2015. As of March 31, 2015, the
Company was in compliance with all covenants and conditions under its Credit Agreement.
 
From time-to-time, the Company has unsecured, uncommitted lines of credit to support working capital for a few foreign subsidiaries. As of
March 31, 2015 and 2014, no foreign loans were outstanding.
 
Letters of Credit
 
As of March 31, 2015, outstanding letters of credit under the Credit Agreement totaled $3.2 million and primarily guaranteed workers’
compensation and other insurance related obligations. As of March 31, 2015, letters of credit and contract performance guarantees issued
outside of the Credit Agreement totaled $4.6 million.
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Legal Proceedings
 
From time to time, the Company has been involved in legal actions, both as plaintiff and defendant, which arise in the ordinary course of
business. The Company accrues for exposures associated with such legal actions to the extent that losses are deemed both probable and
estimable. To the extent specific reserves have not been made for certain legal proceedings, their ultimate outcome, and consequently, an
estimate of possible loss, if any, cannot reasonably be determined at this time.
 
Based on currently available information and advice received from counsel, the Company believes that the disposition or ultimate resolution of
any current legal proceedings, except as otherwise specifically reserved for in its financial statements, will not have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s financial position, cash flows or results of operations.
 
(11)                          NONCONTROLLING INTEREST
 
The following table reconciles equity attributable to noncontrolling interest (in thousands):
 
  

Three Months Ended March 31,
 

  

2015
 

2014
 

Noncontrolling interest, January 1
 

$ 7,983
 

$ 8,081
 

Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest
 

1,090
 

957
 

Dividends distributed to noncontrolling interest
 

(990)
 

(990)
 

Foreign currency translation adjustments
 

(284)
 

35
 

Equity based compensation expense
 

20
 

8
 

Noncontrolling interest, March 31
 

$ 7,819
 

$ 8,091
 

 
(12)                          MANDATORILY REDEEMABLE NONCONTROLLING INTEREST
 
The Company holds an 80% interest in iKnowtion. In the event iKnowtion meets certain EBITDA targets for calendar year 2015, the purchase
and sale agreement requires TeleTech to purchase the remaining 20% interest in iKnowtion in 2016 for an amount equal to a multiple of
iKnowtion’s 2015 EBITDA as defined in the purchase and sale agreement. These terms represent a contingent redemption feature which the
Company determined is probable of being achieved.
 
The Company has recorded the mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interest at the redemption value based on the corresponding EBITDA
multiples as prescribed in the purchase and sale agreement at the end of each reporting period. At the end of each reporting period the
changes in the redemption value are recorded in retained earnings. Since the EBITDA multiples as defined in the purchase and sale
agreement are below the current market multiple, the Company has determined that there is no preferential treatment to the noncontrolling
interest shareholders resulting in no impact to earnings per share.
 
A rollforward of the mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interest is as follows (in thousands):
 
  

Three months ended March 31,
 

  

2015
 

2014
 

Mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interest, January 1
 

$ 2,814
 

$ 2,509
 

Net income attributable to mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interest
 

173
 

128
 

Dividends distributed to mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interest
 

-
 

-
 

Change in redemption value
 

424
 

(175)
 

Mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interest, March 31
 

$ 3,411
 

$ 2,462
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TELETECH HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(UNAUDITED)

 
(13)       ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
 
The following table presents changes in the accumulated balance for each component of other comprehensive income (loss), including current
period other comprehensive income (loss) and reclassifications out of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (in thousands):
 

  

Foreign
Currency

Translation
Adjustment

 

Derivative
Valuation, Net

of Tax
 

Other, Net
of Tax

 
Totals

 

          
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at December 31,

2014
 

$ (33,352)
 

$ (18,345)
 

$ (577)
 

$ (52,274)
              

Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications
  

(10,999)
  

(1,291)
  

(2,841)
  

(15,131)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income

(loss)
  

-
  

1,139 
  

246 
  

1,385
 

Net current period other comprehensive income (loss)
  

(10,999)
  

(152)
  

(2,595)
  

(13,746)
              
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at March 31, 2015

 
$ (44,351)

 
$ (18,497)

 
$ (3,172)

 
$ (66,020)

              
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at December 31,

2013
 

$ (10,581)
 

$ (8,352)
 

$ (1,653)
 

$ (20,586)
              

Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifications
  

(1,758)
  

(3,649)
  

187 
  

(5,220)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income

(loss)
  

-
  

1,115 
  

89 
  

1,204
 

Net current period other comprehensive income (loss)
  

(1,758)
  

(2,534)
  

276 
  

(4,016)
              
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at March 31, 2014

 
$ (12,339)

 
$ (10,886)

 
$ (1,377)

 
$ (24,602)

 
The following table presents the classification and amount of the reclassifications from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) to the
statement of comprehensive income (in thousands):
 
  

For the Three Months Ended
   

  
March 31, 2015

 
March 31, 2014

 

Statement of
Comprehensive Income

Classification
 

          
Derivative valuation

         

Gain (loss) on foreign currency forward exchange contracts
 

  $ (1,708)
 

  $ (1,570)
 

Revenue
 

Loss on interest rate swaps
 

(257)
 

(258)
 

Interest expense
 

Tax effect
 

826
  

713
  

Provision for income taxes
 

  

  $ (1,139)
 

  $ (1,115)
 

Net income (loss)
 

          
Other

         

Actuarial loss on defined benefit plan
 

  $ (274)
 

  $ (95)
 

Cost of services
 

Tax effect
 

28
  

6
  

Provision for income taxes
 

  

  $ (246)
 

  $ (89)
 

Net income (loss)
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TELETECH HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)
 

(14)       NET INCOME PER SHARE
 
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted shares for the periods indicated (in thousands):
 
  

Three Months Ended March 31,
 

  

2015
 

2014
 

Shares used in basic earnings per share calculation
 

48,370 
 

50,045 
 

Effect of dilutive securities:
     

Stock options
 

384 
 

411 
 

Restricted stock units
 

401 
 

517 
 

Performance-based restricted stock units
 

3 
 

-
 

Total effects of dilutive securities
 

788 
 

928 
 

Shares used in dilutive earnings per share calculation
 

49,158 
 

50,973 
 

 
For the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, options to purchase 0.1 million and 0.1 million shares of common stock, respectively,
were outstanding, but not included in the computation of diluted net income per share because the exercise price exceeded the value of the
shares and the effect would have been anti—dilutive. For the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, restricted stock units (“RSUs”) of
0.5 million and 0.3 million, respectively, were outstanding, but not included in the computation of diluted net income per share because the
effect would have been anti-dilutive.



 
(15)       EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS
 
All equity—based awards to employees are recognized in the Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) at the fair value of
the award on the grant date. During the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company recognized total compensation expense
of $2.7 million and $3.2 million, respectively. Of the total compensation expense, $0.6 million and $0.6 million was recognized in Cost of
services and $2.1 million and $2.6 million was recognized in Selling, general and administrative.
 
Restricted Stock Unit Grants
 
During the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company granted 80,000 and 164,000 RSUs, respectively, to new and existing
employees, which vest in equal installments over four or five years. The Company recognized compensation expense related to RSUs of $2.6
million and $3.0 million for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. As of March 31, 2015, there was approximately
$24.2 million of total unrecognized compensation cost (including the impact of expected forfeitures) related to RSUs granted under the
Company’s equity plans.
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS
 
This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995 (“Litigation Reform Act”), relating to our future operations, expected financial condition and prospects, results of operation, and other
business matters that are based on our current expectations, assumptions, business strategy, and projections with respect to the future, and
are not a guarantee of performance. Forward-looking statements may appear throughout this report, including without limitation, the following
sections: Part I, Item 2, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis” of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and Part II, Item 1A, “Risk
Factors.” Forward-looking statements generally can be identified by words such as “anticipates,” “believes,” “estimates,” “expects,” “intends,”
“plans,” “predicts,” “projects,” “will be,” “will continue,” “will likely result,” and similar expressions. When we discuss our strategy, plans, goals,
initiatives, or objectives, we are making forward-looking statements. For those statements, we claim the protection of the safe harbor for
forward-looking statements contained in the Litigation Reform Act.
 
We caution you not to rely unduly on any forward-looking statements. Actual results may differ materially from what is expressed in the forward-
looking statements, and you should review and consider carefully the risks, uncertainties and other factors that affect our business and may
cause such differences, as outlined but are not limited to factors discussed in the “Risk Factors” section of our 2014 Annual Report on Form 10-
K.
 
The forward-looking statements are based on information available as of the date that this Form 10-Q is filed with the United States Securities
and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and we undertake no obligation to update them, except as may be required by applicable laws. They are
based on numerous assumptions and developments that are not within our control. Although we believe these forward-looking statements are
reasonable, we cannot assure you they will turn out to be correct.
 
ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
 
Executive Summary
 
TeleTech Holdings, Inc. (“TeleTech”, “the Company”, “we”, “our” or “us”) is a customer engagement management service provider that delivers
integrated consulting, technology, growth and customer care solutions on a global scale. Our suite of product and service capabilities allows us
to design and deliver enhanced, value-driven customer experiences across numerous communication channels. Our solutions are supported
by 44,000 employees delivering services in 24 countries from 61 delivery centers on six continents. Our revenue for the quarter ended
March 31, 2015 was $326 million.
 
Since our establishment in 1982, we have helped clients strengthen their customer relationships, brand recognition and loyalty through
customer engagement solutions. We deliver thought leadership, technology and innovation that create customer strategies designed to
differentiate our clients from their competition; data analytics that personalize interactions and increase customer value; and integration
services that connect clients’ customer relationship management (“CRM”) system to a cloud-based collaboration platform, leading to customer
interactions that are seamless and relevant.
 
Our services are value-oriented, outcome-based, and delivered on a global scale across all of our business segments: Customer Management
Services (“CMS”), Customer Growth Services (“CGS”), Customer Technology Services (“CTS”) and Customer Strategy Services (“CSS”). Our
integrated customer experience platform differentiates the Company by combining strategic consulting, data analytics, process optimization,
system design and integration, operational excellence, and technology solutions and services.
 
We have developed tailored expertise in the automotive, communications, financial services, government, healthcare, logistics, media and
entertainment, retail, technology, travel and transportation industries. We target customer-focused industry leaders in the Global 1000 and
serve more than 250 global clients.
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To improve our competitive position in a rapidly changing market and stay strategically relevant to our clients, we continue to invest in
innovation and growth businesses, diversifying our traditional business process outsourcing services of our CMS segment into higher-value
consulting, data analytics, digital marketing and technology-enabled services. Of the $326 million in revenue we reported in the current period,
approximately 25% or $82.5 million came from the CGS, CTS and CSS segments (our “Emerging Segments”), focused on customer-centric
strategy, growth or technology-based services, with the remainder of our revenue coming from the traditional business process outsourcing
focused CMS segment.
 



Consistent with our growth and diversification strategy, we continue to invest in technology differentiation, analytics, cloud computing and digital
marketing. We also invest in businesses that accelerate our strategy: in 2014, we acquired Sofica Group, a Bulgarian customer management
services company which provides our clients with the capabilities of 18 additional languages while contributing to the geographic and time zone
diversity of our footprint; and rogenSi, a global leadership, change management and sales consulting company that further diversifies our
consulting offerings.
 
Our strong balance sheet, cash flows from operations and access to debt and capital markets have historically provided us the financial
flexibility to effectively fund our organic growth, capital expenditures, strategic acquisitions and incremental investments. Additionally, we
continue to return capital to our shareholders via an ongoing stock repurchase program. As of March 31, 2015, our cumulative authorized
repurchase allowance was $662.3 million, of which we repurchased 42.3 million shares for $631.4 million. For the period from March 31, 2015
through May 4, 2015, we repurchased no additional shares. The stock repurchase program does not have an expiration date. Effective
February 28, 2015, the Board of Directors authorized an additional $25 million for stock repurchases.
 
On February 24, 2015, our Board of Directors adopted a dividend policy, with the intent to distribute a periodic cash dividend to stockholders of
our common stock, after consideration of, among other things, TeleTech’s performance, cash flows, capital needs and liquidity factors. Given
our cash flow generation and balance sheet strength, we believe cash dividends and early returns to shareholders through share repurchases,
in balance with our investments in innovation and strategic acquisitions, align shareholder interests with the needs of the Company. The initial
dividend of $0.18 per common share was paid on March 16, 2015 to shareholders of record as of March 6, 2015.
 
Our Integrated Service Offerings and Business Segments
 
We operate our business utilizing four operating and reportable segments, which provide an integrated set of services offering through design,
technology enablement, management and growth:
 
Customer Strategy Services
 
We typically begin by engaging our clients at a strategic level. Through our strategy, change management and analytics-driven consulting
expertise, we help our clients design, build and execute their customer engagement strategies. We help our clients to better understand and
predict their customers’ behaviors and preferences along with their current and future economic value. Using proprietary analytic models, we
provide the insight clients need to build the business case for customer centricity, to better optimize their marketing spend and then work
alongside them to help implement our recommendations. A key component of this segment involves instilling a high performance culture
through management and leadership alignment and process optimization.
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Customer Technology Services
 
Once the design of the customer engagement is completed, our ability to architect, deploy and host or manage the client’s customer
management environments becomes a key enabler to achieving and sustaining the client’s customer engagement vision. Given the
proliferation of mobile communication technologies and devices, we enable our clients’ operations to interact with their customers across the
growing array of channels including email, social networks, mobile, web, SMS text, voice and chat. We design, implement and manage cloud,
on-premise or hybrid customer management environments to deliver a consistent and superior experience across all touch points on a global
scale that we believe result in higher quality, lower costs and reduced risk for our clients. Through our proprietary Humanify™ technology, we
also provide data-driven context aware SaaS-based solutions that link customers seamlessly and directly to appropriate resources, any time
and across any channel.
 
Customer Management Services
 
We design and manage clients’ front-to-back office processes to deliver just-in-time, personalized, multi-channel interactions. Our front-office
solutions seamlessly integrate voice, chat, email, e-commerce and social media to optimize the customer experience for our clients. In addition,
we manage certain client back-office processes to enhance their customer-centric view of relationships and maximize operating efficiencies.
Our delivery of integrated business processes via our onshore, offshore or work-from-home associates reduces operating costs and allows
customer needs to be met more quickly and efficiently, resulting in higher satisfaction, brand loyalty and a stronger competitive position for our
clients.
 
Customer Growth Services
 
We offer integrated sales and marketing solutions to help our clients boost revenue in new, fragmented or underpenetrated business-to-
consumer or business-to-business markets. We deliver approximately $1 billion in client revenue annually via the acquisition, growth and
retention of customers through a combination of our highly trained, client-dedicated sales professionals and our proprietary Revana Analytic
Multichannel Platform . This platform continuously aggregates individual customer information across all channels into one holistic view so as
to ensure more relevant and personalized communications. As a result of our acquisition of the digital agency Web Metro, we have developed
an integrated marketing-to-sales platform that links online searches to live sales through a closed loop, multichannel interface. This platform
uses proprietary tools and methodology to capture and use more than 400 marketing and sales data points to engage with customers in
relevant conversations.
 
Based on our clients’ requirements, we provide our services on an integrated cross-business segment and on a discrete basis.
 
We are currently providing services to clients in the following verticals for each segment:
 

Operating Segments and Industry Verticals
CMS

 
CGS

 
CTS

 
CSS

       
Automotive

 
Automotive

 
Communication

 
Automotive

Communication
 

Communication
 

Financial Services
 

Communication
Financial Services

 
Financial Services

 
Government

 
Financial Services

Government
 

Healthcare
 

Healthcare
 

Healthcare
Healthcare

 
Logistics

 
Media and Entertainment

 
Media and Entertainment

   

TM



Media and Entertainment Media and Entertainment Retail Technology
Retail

 
Technology

 
Technology

 

 

Travel and Transportation
 

 

 

 

 

 

Technology
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Business Overview
 
In the first quarter of 2015, our revenue increased 7.7% to $325.5 million over the same period in 2014 despite a decrease of 3.2% or $9.5
million due to foreign currency fluctuations, primarily the Australian dollar and the Brazilian Real. Revenue, adjusted for the $9.5 million
decrease related to foreign exchange, increased by $32.8 million, or 10.9%, over the prior year. This increase in revenue is comprised of
growth in the CMS, CTS and CSS segments with a slight decline in the CGS segment.
 
Our first quarter 2015 income from operations increased 7.3% to $26.1 million or 8.0% of revenue, from $24.4 million or 8.1% of revenue in the
first quarter of 2014. This increase is due to organic revenue growth and income from the recent acquisitions. These were partially offset by
$0.4 million additional amortization of intangibles related to the acquisitions, and investments in sales and research and development. Income
from operations in the first quarter of 2015 and 2014 included $0.8 million and $0.5 million of restructuring charges and asset impairments,
respectively.
 
Our offshore delivery centers serve clients based in the U.S. and in other countries and spans five countries with 20,200 workstations and
representing 63% of our global delivery capability. Revenue for our CMS and CGS segments that is provided in these offshore locations was
$113 million and represented 42% of our revenue for the first quarter of 2015, as compared to $114 million and 44% of our revenue for 2014.
 
Our cash flow from operations and available credit allowed us to finance a significant portion of our capital needs and stock repurchases
through internally generated cash flows. At March 31, 2015, we had $65.7 million of cash and cash equivalents, total debt of $131.2 million,
and a total debt to total capitalization ratio of 22.4%.
 
We internally target capacity utilization in our delivery centers at 80% to 90% of our available workstations. As of March 31, 2015, the overall
capacity utilization in our multi-client centers was 82%. The table below presents workstation data for our multi-client centers as of March 31,
2015 and 2014. Dedicated and Managed Centers (5,348 and 5,056 workstations, at March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively) are excluded from
the workstation data as unused workstations in these facilities are not available for sale. Our utilization percentage is defined as the total
number of utilized production workstations compared to the total number of available production workstations. We may change the designation
of shared or dedicated centers based on the normal changes in our business environment and client needs.
 
  

March 31, 2015
 

March 31, 2014
 

  

Total
Production

Workstations
 

In Use
 

% In Use
 

Total
Production

Workstations
 

In Use
 

% In Use
 

              
Multi-client centers

             

Sites open <1 year
 

1,307 
 

1,121 
 

86%
 

2,166 
 

1,793 
 

83%
 

Sites open >1 year
 

25,614 
 

21,075 
 

82%
 

22,040 
 

18,142 
 

82%
 

Total multi-client centers
 

26,921 
 

22,196 
 

82%
 

24,206 
 

19,935 
 

82%
 

 
We continue to see demand from all geographic regions to utilize our offshore delivery capabilities and expect this trend to continue with our
clients. In light of this trend, we plan to continue to selectively retain and grow capacity and expand into new offshore markets. As we grow our
offshore delivery capabilities and our exposure to foreign currency fluctuations increases, we continue to actively manage this risk via a multi-
currency hedging program designed to minimize operating margin volatility.
 
Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements
 
Refer to Part I, Item I, Financial Statements, Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of recently issued accounting
pronouncements.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our Consolidated Financial
Statements, which have been prepared in accordance with GAAP. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses as well as the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities. We regularly review our estimates and assumptions. These estimates and assumptions, which are based upon historical
experience and on various other factors believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, form the basis for making judgments about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Reported amounts and disclosures may have been
different had management used different estimates and assumptions or if different conditions had occurred in the periods presented. For further
information, please refer to the discussion of all critical accounting policies in Note 1 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in
our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2014.
 
Results of Operations
 
Three months ended March 31, 2015 compared to three months ended March 31, 2014
 



The tables included in the following sections are presented to facilitate an understanding of Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations and present certain information by segment for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and
2014 (amounts in thousands). All inter-company transactions between the reported segments for the periods presented have been eliminated.
 
Customer Management Services
 
  

Three Months Ended March 31,
     

  

2015
 

2014
 

$ Change
 

% Change
 

Revenue
 

$ 243,009
 

$ 227,924
 

$ 15,085
 

6.6 %
Operating Income

 

21,702
 

20,823
 

879
 

4.2 %
Operating Margin

 

8.9 % 9.1 %
    

 
The increase in revenue for the Customer Management Services segment was attributable to a $29.5 million net increase in client programs
and acquisitions offset by program completions of $6.6 million. Revenue was further impacted by a $7.8 million reduction due to foreign
currency fluctuations, primarily the Australian dollar and the Brazilian Real.
 
The operating income as a percentage of revenue decreased to 8.9% in the first quarter of 2015 as compared to 9.1% in the prior period. The
operating income margin decreased due to additional costs as new delivery centers are being opened, investments in sales and research and
development, and the geographic mix of the revenue growth. Included in the operating income was amortization related to acquired intangibles
of $0.2 million and $0.1 million for the quarters ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
 
Customer Growth Services
 
  

Three Months Ended March 31,
     

  

2015
 

2014
 

$ Change
 

% Change
 

Revenue
 

$ 25,956
 

$ 28,905
 

$ (2,949)
 

(10.2)%
Operating Income

 

26
 

1,770
 

(1,744)
 

(98.5)%
Operating Margin

 

0.1 % 6.1 %
    

 
The change in revenue for the Customer Growth Services segment was due to a $0.3 million increase in client programs offset by program
completions of $2.4 million, and a $0.8 million reduction due to foreign currency fluctuations.

 
26

Table of Contents
 

The operating income as a percentage of revenue decreased to 0.1% in the first quarter of 2015 as compared to 6.1% in the prior period. This
decrease was primarily driven by the completion of established programs and the ramp of new programs sold in late 2014. Included in the
operating income was amortization related to acquired intangibles of $0.7 million and $0.7 million for the quarters ended March 31, 2015 and
2014, respectively.
 
Customer Technology Services
 
  

Three Months Ended March 31,
     

  

2015
 

2014
 

$ Change
 

% Change
 

Revenue
 

$ 35,714
 

$ 32,776
 

$ 2,938
 

9.0 %
Operating Income

 

2,009
 

311
 

1,698
 

546.0 %
Operating Margin

 

5.6 % 0.9 %
    

 
The increase in revenue for the Customer Technology Services segment was related to increases in both the Cisco and Avaya product
offerings.
 
The operating income as a percentage of revenue increased to 5.6% in the first quarter of 2015 as compared to 0.9% in the prior period. The
improvement in operating income margin is attributable to increased revenue in combination with lower selling, general and administrative
expenses and an improving depreciation expense to revenue in our cloud business. Included in the operating income was amortization related
to acquired intangibles of $1.0 million and $1.2 million for the quarters ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
 
Customer Strategy Services
 
  

Three Months Ended March 31,
      

  

2015
 

2014
  

$ Change
 

% Change
 

Revenue
 

$ 20,842
 

$ 12,616
  

$ 8,226
 

65.2 %
Operating Income

 

2,391
 

1,453
  

938
 

64.6 %
Operating Margin

 

11.5 % 11.5 %
     

 
The increase in revenue for the Customer Strategy Services segment was related to organic growth across several of our geographies and
practices including our analytics and operations and technology practices and the acquisition of rogenSi in August 2014 offset by a $0.7 million
reduction due to foreign exchange fluctuations.
 
The operating income as a percentage of revenue remained flat at 11.5% in the first quarter of 2015 as compared to 11.5% in the prior period.
The absolute dollar operating income increase related to the organic revenue growth of our operations and technology practice and the
acquisition of rogenSi. Included in the operating income was amortization expense of $0.8 million and $0.4 million for the quarters ended
March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
 
Interest Income (Expense)
 
For the three months ended March 31, 2015, interest income decreased to $0.3 million from $0.5 million in the comparable period in 2014.
Interest expense remained consistent at $1.7 million during 2015 and 2014.
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Income Taxes
 
The effective tax rate for the three months ended March 31, 2015 was 18.0%. This compares to an effective tax rate of 11.9% for the
comparable period of 2014. The effective tax rate for the three months ended March 31, 2015 was influenced by earnings in international
jurisdictions currently under an income tax holiday and the distribution of income between the U.S. and international tax jurisdictions. Without a
$0.3 million benefit related to changes in the valuation allowance, a $0.3 million benefit related to restructuring charges, and $0.3 million of
benefit related to other discrete items recognized during the quarter, the Company’s effective tax rate for the first quarter would have been
21.0%.
 
Liquidity and Capital Resources
 
Our principal sources of liquidity are our cash generated from operations, our cash and cash equivalents, and borrowings under our Credit
Agreement, dated June 3, 2013 (the “Credit Agreement”). During the quarter ended March 31, 2015, we generated positive operating cash
flows of $3.8 million. We believe that our cash generated from operations, existing cash and cash equivalents, and available credit will be
sufficient to meet expected operating and capital expenditure requirements for the next 12 months.
 
We manage a centralized global treasury function in the United States with a focus on concentrating and safeguarding our global cash and
cash equivalents. While the majority of our cash is held outside the U.S., we prefer to hold U.S. Dollars in addition to the local currencies of our
foreign subsidiaries. We expect to use our offshore cash to support working capital and growth of our foreign operations. While there are no
assurances, we believe our global cash is protected given our cash management practices, banking partners and utilization of diversified, high
quality investments.
 
We have global operations that expose us to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations that may positively or negatively impact our liquidity.
We are also exposed to higher interest rates associated with our variable rate debt. To mitigate these risks, we enter into foreign exchange
forward and option contracts and interest rate swaps through our cash flow hedging program. Please refer to Item 3. Quantitative and
Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk, Foreign Currency Risk, for further discussion.
 
The following discussion highlights our cash flow activities during the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014.
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents
 
We consider all liquid investments purchased within 90 days of their original maturity to be cash equivalents. Our cash and cash equivalents
totaled $65.7 million and $77.3 million as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. We diversify the holdings of such cash and
cash equivalents considering the financial condition and stability of the counterparty institutions.
 
We reinvest our cash flows to grow our client base, expand our infrastructure, for investment in research and development, for strategic
acquisitions and the purchase of our outstanding stock.
 
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
 
For the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, net cash flows provided by operating activities was $3.8 million and $13.5 million,
respectively. The decrease was primarily due to a $16.7 million decrease in cash collected from accounts receivable offset by a $3.2 million
decrease in payments made for operating expenses and a $4.6 million decrease in cash spent on prepaids and other assets.
 
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
 
For the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, we reported net cash flows used in investing activities of $22.1 million and
$23.1 million, respectively. The slight decrease was due to a decreased spending on acquisitions of $8.1 million along with a $2.0 million
decrease in capital expenditures offset by a $9.0 million investment during the first three months of 2015.
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Cash Flows from Financing Activities
 
For the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, we reported net cash flows provided by (used in) financing activities of $9.3 million and
($24.4) million, respectively. The change in net cash flows from 2014 to 2015 was primarily due to a $26.0 million increase in net borrowings
from our line of credit, a $14.5 million decrease in purchases of our outstanding common stock offset by $8.7 million of dividends paid during
the first three months of 2015.
 
Free Cash Flow
 
Free cash flow (see “Presentation of Non-GAAP Measurements” below for the definition of free cash flow) decreased for the three months
ended March 31, 2015 compared to the three months ended March 31, 2014 due to the decrease in cash flows provided by operating activities
offset partially by a decrease in capital expenditures. Free cash flow was $(9.2) million and $(1.6) million for the three months ended March 31,
2015 and 2014, respectively.
 
Presentation of Non-GAAP Measurements
 
Free Cash Flow
 
Free cash flow is a non-GAAP liquidity measurement. We believe that free cash flow is useful to our investors because it measures, during a
given period, the amount of cash generated that is available for debt obligations and investments other than purchases of property, plant and
equipment. Free cash flow is not a measure determined by GAAP and should not be considered a substitute for “income from operations,” “net
income,” “net cash provided by operating activities,” or any other measure determined in accordance with GAAP. We believe this non-GAAP
liquidity measure is useful, in addition to the most directly comparable GAAP measure of “net cash provided by operating activities,” because



free cash flow includes investments in operational assets. Free cash flow does not represent residual cash available for discretionary
expenditures, since it includes cash required for debt service. Free cash flow also includes cash that may be necessary for acquisitions,
investments and other needs that may arise.
 
The following table reconciles net cash provided by operating activities to free cash flow for our consolidated results (in thousands):
 
  

Three Months Ended March 31,
  

2015
  

2014
 

Net cash provided by operating activities
 

$ 3,820
  

$ 13,537
 

Less: Purchases of property, plant and equipment
 

13,038
  

15,095
 

Free cash flow
 

$ (9,218)
 

$ (1,558)
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Obligations and Future Capital Requirements
 
Future maturities of our outstanding debt and contractual obligations as of March 31, 2015 are summarized as follows (in thousands):
 

  

Less than 1
Year

 

1 to 3
Years

 

3 to 5
Years

 

Over 5
Years

 

Total
 

            
Credit Facility

 

$ 2,860
 

$ 4,760
 

$ 126,395
 

$ -
 

$ 134,015
 

Equipment financing arrangements
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

-
 

Contingent consideration
 

10,991
 

13,737
 

-
 

-
 

24,728
 

Purchase obligations
 

28,927
 

22,041
 

-
 

-
 

50,968
 

Operating lease commitments
 

31,296
 

74,587
 

38,856
 

5,141
 

149,880
 

Other debt
 

2,879
 

1,905
 

156
 

-
 

4,940
 

Total
 

$ 76,953
 

$ 117,030
 

$ 165,407
 

$ 5,141
 

$ 364,531
 

 
                Includes estimated interest payments based on the weighted-average interest rate, unused commitment fees, current interest rate swap

arrangements, and outstanding debt as of March 31, 2015.
 
·                  Contractual obligations to be paid in a foreign currency are translated at the period end exchange rate.
 
·                  Purchase obligations primarily consist of outstanding purchase orders for goods or services not yet received, which are not recognized as

liabilities in our Consolidated Balance Sheets until such goods and/or services are received.
 
·                  The contractual obligation table excludes our liabilities of $1.9 million related to uncertain tax positions because we cannot reliably estimate

the timing of cash payments.
 
Our outstanding debt is primarily associated with the use of funds under our Credit Agreement to fund working capital, repurchase our common
stock, and other cash flow needs across our global operations.
 
Future Capital Requirements
 
We expect total capital expenditures in 2015 to be within the range of $70 to 80 million. Approximately 70% of these expected capital
expenditures are to support growth in our business and 30% relate to the maintenance for existing assets. The anticipated level of 2015 capital
expenditures is primarily driven by new client contracts and the corresponding requirements for additional delivery center capacity as well as
enhancements to our technological infrastructure.
 
The amount of capital required over the next 12 months will depend on our levels of investment in infrastructure necessary to maintain,
upgrade or replace existing assets. Our working capital and capital expenditure requirements could also increase materially in the event of
acquisitions or joint ventures, among other factors. These factors could require that we raise additional capital through future debt or equity
financing. We can provide no assurance that we will be able to raise additional capital upon commercially reasonable terms acceptable to us.
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Client Concentration
 
During the three months ended March 31, 2015, one of our clients represented 10.9% of our total revenue. Our five largest clients accounted
for 38.2% and 37.6% of our consolidated revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. We have experienced
long-term relationships with our top five clients, ranging from two to 19 years, with the majority of these clients having completed multiple
contract renewals with us. The relative contribution of any single client to consolidated earnings is not always proportional to the relative
revenue contribution on a consolidated basis and varies greatly based upon specific contract terms. In addition, clients may adjust business
volumes served by us based on their business requirements. We believe the risk of this concentration is mitigated, in part, by the long-term
contracts we have with our largest clients. Although certain client contracts may be terminated for convenience by either party, we believe this
risk is mitigated, in part, by the service level disruptions and transition/migration costs that would arise for our clients.
 
The contracts with our five largest clients expire between 2016 and 2017. Several contracts expiring in 2016 are currently under renewal
negotiations or are subject to evergreen provisions, pursuant to which the contract renews automatically unless notice is provided to the
contrary. Additionally, a particular client may have multiple contracts with different expiration dates. We have historically renewed most of our
contracts with our largest clients. However, there is no assurance that future contracts will be renewed, or if renewed, will be on terms as
favorable as the existing contracts.

(1)

(1)



 
ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

 
Market risk represents the risk of loss that may impact our consolidated financial position, consolidated results of operations, or consolidated
cash flows due to adverse changes in financial and commodity market prices and rates. Market risk also includes credit and non-performance
risk by counterparties to our various financial instruments. We are exposed to market risk due to changes in interest rates and foreign currency
exchange rates (as measured against the U.S. dollar); as well as credit risk associated with potential non-performance of our counterparty
banks. These exposures are directly related to our normal operating and funding activities. We enter into derivative instruments to manage and
reduce the impact of currency exchange rate changes, primarily between the U.S. dollar/Canadian dollar, the U.S. dollar/Philippine peso, the
U.S. dollar/Mexican peso, and the Australian dollar/Philippine peso. We enter into interest rate derivative instruments to reduce our exposure to
interest rate fluctuations associated with our variable rate debt. To mitigate against credit and non-performance risk, it is our policy to only enter
into derivative contracts and other financial instruments with investment grade counterparty financial institutions and, correspondingly, our
derivative valuations reflect the creditworthiness of our counterparties. As of the date of this report, we have not experienced, nor do we
anticipate, any issues related to derivative counterparty defaults.
 
Interest Rate Risk
 
We entered into interest rate derivative instruments to reduce our exposure to interest rate fluctuations associated with our variable rate debt.
The interest rate on our Credit Agreement is variable based upon the Prime Rate and LIBOR and, therefore, is affected by changes in market
interest rates. As of March 31, 2015, we had $126.0 million of outstanding borrowings under the Credit Agreement. Based upon average
outstanding borrowings during the three months ended March 31, 2015, interest accrued at a rate of approximately 1.2% per annum. If the
Prime Rate or LIBOR increased by 100 basis points during the quarter, there would not have been a material impact to our consolidated
financial position or results of operations.
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The Company’s interest rate swap arrangements as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 were as follows:
 

  

Notional
Amount

 

Variable Rate
Received

 

Fixed Rate
Paid

  

Contract
Commencement

Date
 

Contract
Maturity

Date
 

As of March 31, 2015
 

$ 25 million
 

1 - month LIBOR
 

2.55 %
 

April 2012
 

April 2016
 

and December 31, 2014
  

15 million
 

1 - month LIBOR
 

3.14 %
 

May 2012
 

May 2017
 

  

$ 40 million
          

 
Foreign Currency Risk
 
Our subsidiaries in Bulgaria, Canada, Costa Rica, Mexico, and the Philippines use the local currency as their functional currency for paying
labor and other operating costs. Conversely, revenue for these foreign subsidiaries is derived principally from client contracts that are invoiced
and collected in U.S. dollars or other foreign currencies. As a result, we may experience foreign currency gains or losses, which may positively
or negatively affect our results of operations attributed to these subsidiaries. For the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, revenue
associated with this foreign exchange risk was 30% and 32% of our consolidated revenue, respectively.
 
In order to mitigate the risk of these non-functional foreign currencies weakening against the functional currencies of the servicing subsidiaries,
which thereby decreases the economic benefit of performing work in these countries, we may hedge a portion, though not 100%, of the
projected foreign currency exposure related to client programs served from these foreign countries through our cash flow hedging program.
While our hedging strategy can protect us from adverse changes in foreign currency rates in the short term, an overall weakening of the non-
functional foreign currencies would adversely impact margins in the segments of the servicing subsidiary over the long term.
 
Cash Flow Hedging Program
 
To reduce our exposure to foreign currency exchange rate fluctuations associated with forecasted revenue in non-functional currencies, we
purchase forward and/or option contracts to acquire the functional currency of the foreign subsidiary at a fixed exchange rate at specific dates
in the future. We have designated and account for these derivative instruments as cash flow hedges for forecasted revenue in non-functional
currencies.
 
While we have implemented certain strategies to mitigate risks related to the impact of fluctuations in currency exchange rates, we cannot
ensure that we will not recognize gains or losses from international transactions, as this is part of transacting business in an international
environment. Not every exposure is or can be hedged and, where hedges are put in place based on expected foreign exchange exposure, they
are based on forecasts for which actual results may differ from the original estimate. Failure to successfully hedge or anticipate currency risks
properly could adversely affect our consolidated operating results.
 
Our cash flow hedging instruments as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 are summarized as follows (in thousands). All hedging
instruments are forward contracts.
 
 

As of March 31, 2015
 

Local Currency
Notional
Amount

 

U.S. Dollar
Notional
Amount

 

% Maturing in
the Next 12

Months
  

Contracts
Maturing
Through

 

Canadian Dollar
 

750
 

$ 719
 

100.0 %
 

June 2015
 

Philippine Peso
 

17,063,000
 

386,570 36.8 %
 

February 2020
 

Mexican Peso
 

2,528,000
 

176,073
 

28.5 %
 

February 2020
 

    

$ 563,362
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As of December 31, 2014
 

Local Currency
Notional
Amount

 

U.S. Dollar
Notional
Amount

      

Canadian Dollar
 

1,500
 

$ 1,441
      

Philippine Peso
 

17,428,000
 

398,046
     

Mexican Peso
 

2,532,000
 

179,089
      

New Zealand Dollar
 

490
 

381
      

    

$ 578,957
      

 
                Includes contracts to purchase Philippine pesos in exchange for New Zealand dollars and Australian dollars, which are translated into

equivalent U.S. dollars on March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014.
 
The fair value of our cash flow hedges at March 31, 2015 was assets/(liabilities) (in thousands):
 

  

March 31, 2015
 

Maturing in the
Next 12 Months

Canadian Dollar
 

$ (129)
 

$ (129)
Philippine Peso

 

(13,038)
 

(5,210)
Mexican Peso

 

(17,775)
 

(6,298)
New Zealand Dollar

 

-
 

-
  

$ (30,942)
 

$ (11,637)
 
Our cash flow hedges are valued using models based on market observable inputs, including both forward and spot foreign exchange rates,
implied volatility, and counterparty credit risk. The decrease in fair value from December 31, 2014 largely reflects a broad strengthening in the
U.S. dollar.
 
We recorded net losses of $1.7 million and $1.6 million for settled cash flow hedge contracts for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and
2014, respectively. These losses were reflected in Revenue in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income. If the
exchange rates between our various currency pairs were to increase or decrease by 10% from current period-end levels, we would incur a
material gain or loss on the contracts. However, any gain or loss would be mitigated by corresponding increases or decreases in our underlying
exposures.
 
Other than the transactions hedged as discussed above and in Part I, Item I. Financial Statements, Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, the majority of the transactions of our U.S. and foreign operations are denominated in their respective local currency. However,
transactions are denominated in other currencies from time-to-time. We do not currently engage in hedging activities related to these types of
foreign currency risks because we believe them to be insignificant as we endeavor to settle these accounts on a timely basis. For the three
months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, approximately 22% and 23%, respectively, of revenue was derived from contracts denominated in
currencies other than the U.S. Dollar. Our results from operations and revenue could be adversely affected if the U.S. Dollar strengthens
significantly against foreign currencies.
 
Fair Value of Debt and Equity Securities
 
We did not have any investments in debt or equity securities as of March 31, 2015 or December 31, 2014.
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ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
 

This Report includes the certifications of our Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) required by Rule 13a-14 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”). See Exhibits 31.1 and 31.2. This Item 4 includes information concerning the controls
and control evaluations referred to in those certifications.

 
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures
 
Disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) are designed to reasonably assure
that information required to be disclosed in reports filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and
reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to
management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.
 
Our management, including the CEO and CFO, believes that any disclosure controls and procedures or internal controls and procedures, no
matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are
met. Further, the design of a control system must consider the benefits of controls relative to their costs. Inherent limitations within a control
system include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of simple error or
mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people, or by
unauthorized override of the control. Over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or deterioration in the
degree of compliance with associated policies or procedures. While the design of any system of controls is to provide reasonable assurance of
the effectiveness of disclosure controls, such design is also based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and
such assumptions, while reasonable, may not take into account all potential future conditions. Accordingly, because of the inherent limitations
in a cost effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and may not be prevented or detected.
 
In connection with the preparation of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, our management, under the supervision and with the participation of
the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of March 31, 2015. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of March 31, 2015 to provide such reasonable assurance.
 
Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting
 

(1)

(1)



There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended March 31, 2015 that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
 

PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
 

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
 

Part I, Item 1. Financial statement, Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statement of this Form 10-Q is hereby incorporated by reference.
 

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
 

There were no material changes to the risk factors described in Item 1A. Risk Factors described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2014.

 
34

Table of Contents
 

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
 

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities
 
Following is the detail of the issuer purchases made during the quarter ended March 31, 2015:
 

Period
 

Total
Number of

Shares
Purchased

 

Average Price
Paid per Share

(or Unit)
 

Total Number of
Shares

Purchased as
Part of Publicly

Announced
Plans or

Programs
 

Approximate
Dollar Value of

Shares that May
Yet Be Purchased
Under the Plans or

Programs (in
thousands)

 

December 31, 2014
       

$ 11,822
 

January 1, 2015 - January 31, 2015
 

113,600
 

$ 22.35
 

113,600
 

$ 9,283
 

February 1, 2015 - February 28, 2015
 

98,500
 

$ 22.46
 

98,500
 

$ 32,071
 

March 1, 2015 - March 31, 2015
 

48,777
 

$ 23.86
 

48,777
 

$ 30,907
 

Total
 

260,877
   

260,877
   

 
In November 2001, our Board of Directors (“Board”) authorized a stock repurchase program with the objective of increasing stockholder

returns. The Board periodically authorizes additional increases to the program. The most recent Board authorization to purchase additional
common stock occurred in February 2015, whereby the Board increased the program allowance by $25.0 million. Since inception of the
program through March 31, 2015, the Board has authorized the repurchase of shares up to a total value of $662.3 million, of which we
have purchased 42.3 million shares on the open market for $631.4 million. As of March 31, 2015 the remaining amount authorized for
repurchases under the program was approximately $30.9 million. The stock repurchase program does not have an expiration date.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS
 
Exhibit No.

 

Exhibit Description
   

10.81*
 

Employment agreement between Robert N. Jimenez and TeleTech Services Corporation effective as of April 20, 2015
(material compensation agreement)

   
31.1*

 

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C.
Section 1350)

   
31.2*

 

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C.
Section 1350)

   
32.1*

 

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C.
Section 1350)

   
32.2*

 

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C.
Section 1350)

   
101.INS**

 

XBRL Instance Document
101.SCH**

 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL**

 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.LAB**

 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE**

 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
101.DEF**

 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
 

  *           Filed herewith.
**         Attached as Exhibit 101 to this report are the following documents formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language):

(i) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, (ii) Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014
(unaudited), (iii) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014

1

(1)        



(unaudited), (iv) Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity as of and for the three months ended March 31, 2015 (unaudited),
and (v) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 (unaudited).
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SIGNATURES
 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by
the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

 
  

 TELETECH HOLDINGS, INC.
  

(Registrant)
   
Date: May 11, 2015 By: /s/ Kenneth D. Tuchman
  

Kenneth D. Tuchman
  

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
   
Date: May 11, 2015 By: /s/ Regina M. Paolillo
  

Regina M. Paolillo
  

Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT INDEX
 
Exhibit No.

 

Exhibit Description
   

10.81*
 

Employment agreement between Robert N. Jimenez and TeleTech Services Corporation effective as of April 20, 2015
(material compensation agreement)

   
31.1*

 

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C.
Section 1350)

   
31.2*

 

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C.
Section 1350)

   
32.1*

 

Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C.
Section 1350)

   
32.2*

 

Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C.
Section 1350)

   
101.INS**

 

XBRL Instance Document
   

101.SCH**
 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
   

101.CAL**
 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
   

101.LAB**
 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
   

101.PRE**
 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
   

101.DEF**
 

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
 

 *    Filed herewith.
**  Attached as Exhibit 101 to this report are the following documents formatted in XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Language):

(i) Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, (ii) Consolidated Balance Sheets as of March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014
(unaudited), (iii) Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014
(unaudited), (iv) Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity as of and for the three months ended March 31, 2015 (unaudited),
and (v) Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the three months ended March 31, 2015 and 2014 (unaudited).
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Exhibit 10.81
 

EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
 

This Executive Employment Agreement (“Agreement”) is by and between TeleTech Services Corporation, a Delaware corporation
(the “Company”), a wholly owned subsidiary of TeleTech Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“TeleTech”), and Robert N.
Jimenez (“Employee” or “Jimenez”), is executed to be effective as of the Start Date of employment (“Effective Date”).
 
1.                                    APPOINTMENT.
 

a.         The Company hereby employs Mr. Jimenez as Executive Vice President Customer Strategy Services to lead
TeleTech Customer Strategy Services (“CSS”) business segment and enable it to deliver its business objectives, as established
from time to time by the TeleTech board of directors (the “Board”). In this role, Mr. Jimenez will report to TeleTech Chief Executive
Officer (“CEO”) and will become a member of the TeleTech executive leadership team. Employee hereby accepts such
appointment with the Company to begin on April 20, 2015 (“Start Date”).

 
b.         Employee shall devote his full-time and best efforts to the performance of all duties contemplated by this

Agreement and, as assigned to Employee from time to time by CEO. Unless otherwise specifically authorized in writing by
TeleTech, Employee shall not engage in any other business activity, or otherwise be employed by any other company.  This shall
not preclude the Employee from serving on boards of directors with TeleTech’s prior written approval.

 
c.         Employee acknowledges that, as part of his employment duties, the Employee may be required to perform services

for, and serve as an officer and/or director of, TeleTech subsidiaries, affiliates and related entities, on behalf of and as requested
by TeleTech; and Employee agrees to perform such duties diligently and without further compensation.  Although employed by the
Company, a TeleTech subsidiary, the Employee as a member of TeleTech executive leadership team shall render services to
TeleTech as necessary and desirable to protect and advance the best interests of TeleTech, acting, in all instances, in accordance
with TeleTech’s Ethics Code and policies.

 
2.                                    COMPENSATION.
 

a.         Salary and Period Salary Review.  As of the Start Date, Employee’s base salary shall be $400,000 per year
(“Base Salary”), payable in equal installments in accordance with the Company’s standard payroll practice, less legally required
deductions and withholdings.  The Employee’s Base Salary may be periodically reviewed and adjusted (but not reduced) in
accordance with TeleTech standard procedures. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Base Salary may be reduced at TeleTech’s
discretion, as part of a company-wide austerity measure or a compliance initiative that applies uniformly to all executives at the
Employee’s level.

 
b.         Variable Incentive Plan (annual cash bonus).  Beginning in 2015, and annually thereafter, Employee will be

eligible to participate in an annual performance based cash incentive program, currently referred to as TeleTech’s Variable
Incentive Plan (“VIP”).  The Employee VIP opportunity shall be up to 200% of his Base Salary (i.e. $800,000), tied to the annual
targets and goals of the business as set by the Compensation Committee of the Board and the CEO.  The Employee’s annual VIP
awards will be based on a combination of: (1) TeleTech-wide business results; (2) CSS business segment specific results and
business segment’s execution against strategy to deliver on a long-term plan to meet revenue and
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operating income goals; and (3) the Employee’s individual performance. 2015 VIP will be paid in the first quarter of 2016, after
TeleTech’s annual results of operations have been determined; and shall be prorated based on the actual time the Employee
worked for the Company in 2015.  Timing and schedule for post 2015 VIP awards is expected to be similar to 2015 VIP and is
determined by the Compensation Committee annually.

 
3.                                    RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS (RSUS).
 

a.         Time-Based New Hire RSU Grant.  TeleTech shall grant to the Employee restricted stock units (“RSUs”) with a
market value of $1,000,000, based on TeleTech stock fair market value at the time of the grant, subject to the approval of the
Compensation Committee of the Board (“New Hire RSUs”).  The New Hire RSUs shall vest in accordance with the terms and
conditions set forth in the Restricted Stock Unit Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference. 
The New Hire RSUs shall vest in five (5) installments, with 40% of the grant vesting on the 2  anniversary of the Start Date, and
20% each vesting on the 3 , 4 , and 5  anniversaries of the Start Date, provided that the Employee continuous to be employed by
the business on each of the vesting dates.

 
b.         Performance-Based RSU Grant.  Starting in 2016, the Employee will be eligible to receive additional RSU grants

based on his performance against targets outlined in Exhibit B to this Agreement, attached hereto and incorporated by reference
(“Performance-Based RSUs”).  The total Performance-Based RSU opportunity shall be up to $8,000,000, as further described in
Exhibit B. The size of each Performance-Based RSU grant shall be contingent on the Employee’s performance against
established CSS incremental operating income and non-CSS operating income “pull-through” targets for the prior fiscal year, as
determined in 2016, 2017, 2018, and 2019 as further detailed in Exhibit B.  All Performance-Based RSU grants will vest on the
first anniversary of each grant provided the Employee continues to be employed by the Company or otherwise employed in the
business through another affiliate of TeleTech.

 
c.         Annual Equity Grants.  TeleTech employees at the Employee’s level participate in TeleTech annual Equity Grant

program, designed to provide long term incentives for senior executives.  The Employee will become eligible for the annual Equity
Grant program beginning in 2018, after the wind-down of the Performance-Based RSU opportunity outlined in paragraph 3(b) of
this Agreement. Annual Equity Grants are based on TeleTech’s and the Employee’s performance against targets, as set by the

nd

rd th th



Compensation Committee of the Board. TeleTech and Employee agree that notwithstanding the Employees eligibility for the
annual Equity Grant, the parties may negotiate in good faith and agree to another multi-year performance-based RSU opportunity
starting in 2018.

 
4.                                    BENEFITS.
 

a.            Health and Welfare Insurance and other benefits.  Employee and his dependents shall be eligible for coverage and may
choose to enroll under TeleTech’s group medical, vision, and dental insurance and other insurance plans made available to
the Company’s employees, beginning on the first of the calendar month after 30 days tenure with the Company (for
clarification, the Employees eligibility for participation in these benefits will start on June 1, 2015, assuming the start date of
April 20, 2015).

 
b.           Miscellaneous benefits.  Employee shall receive benefits generally applicable to the Company’s management employees

that are from time to time in effect, such as the Company’s 401(k) and Deferred Compensation Plans.
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c.   Paid Leave. Employee shall be eligible for have Paid Time Off (PTO) benefit pursuant to the TeleTech’s current PTO

Policy (or any other vacation/sick policy then in effect).  Employee will also be paid for time off for certain holidays as set
forth in Company’s current Company Holiday Policy.

 
5.                                    RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THIS AGREEMENT AND OTHER COMPANY AGREEMENTS.
 

In the event of any direct conflict between any term of this Agreement and any TeleTech contract, policy, procedure,
guideline or other publication addressing the same terms and conditions contained in this Agreement, the terms of this
Agreement shall control in regards to Employee’s employment.

 
6.                                    TERMINATION.
 

a.         Termination by Either Party.  Except as set forth in paragraphs 6(c), (e) and (f) below, upon 30 days written
notice, either party may terminate the employment relationship.  Both parties may mutually agree to a shorter period.

 
b.         Termination by the Company Without Cause or for Good Reason.
 

Upon 30 days written notice, the Company, in its sole discretion, may terminate Employee’s employment without Cause or for
Good Reason (as “Cause” and “Good Reason” are defined in paragraphs 6(g) and 6(h) respectively).  If Employee executes a
separation agreement in a form substantially similar to the agreement set forth in Exhibit C (attached hereto), releasing all legal
claims except for those that cannot legally be released and Employee continues to comply with all terms of such separation
agreement, and any other agreement signed by the Employee with the Company, the Company shall pay Employee severance
compensation equal to twelve (12) months of Employee’s then-current Base Salary, payable monthly over a twelve (12) month
period in accordance with TeleTech’s then current regular pay periods and policies, less legally required deductions and
withholdings. Except as otherwise provided in Exhibit B, no other compensation or bonuses will be deemed “earned” and/or
payable at or following termination.
 
If the Company terminates this Agreement without Cause or for Good Reason under this paragraph 6(b), pays Employee the
compensation earned as of the termination date, and provides Employee severance compensation  in the amount and on the
terms specified in this paragraph 6(b), the Company’s acts in doing so shall be in complete accord and satisfaction of any claim
that Employee has or may at any time have for compensation or payments of any kind from the Company or TeleTech arising from
or relating in whole or part to Employee’s employment with the Company and/or this Agreement. If the separation agreement and
legal release referenced above are not signed within thirty (30) days from when the agreements are presented to the Employee,
then the Employee waives his right to receive any severance compensation pursuant to this Agreement, even if Employee were to
successfully litigate any claim against the Company.
 

c.         Termination by the Company For Cause.  The Company may terminate this Agreement with no notice for Cause,
as that term is defined in paragraph 6(g), with the Company’s only obligation being the payment of any salary and compensation
earned as of the date of termination, and any continuing obligations under the Company benefit plans then in effect, and without
liability for severance compensation of any kind, including the base pay severance set forth in paragraph 6(b) above. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company must provide the Employee with a written notice of Cause, describing fully the
circumstances and allegations being made; and will provide the Employee with 30 calendar days to cure the
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circumstances of such Cause (assuming the reasons behind the Cause are capable of being cured) and, should the Cause be
cured, will reinstate his employment with the Company.  It is understood and agreed that whether the satisfactory cure has been
achieved is subject to the standard dispute resolution provisions of this Agreement.

 
d.         Termination by Employee. Except as provided in paragraph 6(b) in connection with termination for Good Reason,

the Employee is not entitled to severance compensation if Employee terminates his own employment with Company with the
exception of the terms set forth in paragraph 6(f).  Employee shall remain subject to the Company’s Confidentiality and Arbitration
agreements, any other similar agreements executed shortly prior to, or during his employment, including without the limitation this
Agreement, all of which survive termination of employment.

 



e.         Termination Upon Employee’s Death.  This Agreement shall terminate immediately upon Employee’s death. 
Thereafter, the Company shall pay to Employee’s estate all compensation fully earned, and benefits fully vested as of the last
date of Employee’s continuous, full-time active employment with the Company.  For purposes of this Agreement, continuous, full-
time active employment shall be defined as the last date upon which Employee continuously performed his job responsibilities on
a regular, full-time basis consisting of at least 35 hours per week, and in the usual course of the Company’s business
(“Continuous Full-Time Active Employment”).  In case of Employee’s death, the Company shall not be required to pay any form of
severance or other compensation concerning or on account of Employee’s employment with the Company or the termination
thereof.

 
f.          Termination Following Disability.  During the first ninety (90) calendar days after a mental or physical condition

that renders Employee unable to perform the essential functions of his position with reasonable accommodation (the “Initial
Disability Period”), Employee shall continue to receive his base salary pursuant to paragraph 2(a).  Thereafter, if Employee
qualifies for benefits under the Company’s long term disability insurance plan (the “LTD Plan”), then Employee shall remain on
leave for as long as Employee continues to qualify for such benefits, up to a maximum of 180 consecutive days (the “Long Term
Leave Period”).  The Long Term Leave Period shall begin on the first day following the end of the Initial Disability Period.  During
the Long Term Leave Period, Employee shall be entitled to any benefits to which the LTD Plan entitles Employee, but no
additional compensation from the Company in the form of salary, performance bonus, equity grants, allowances or otherwise. If
during or at the end of the Long Term Leave Period Employee remains unable to perform the essential functions of his position,
then the Company may terminate this Agreement and/or Employee’s employment. If the Company terminates this Agreement or
Employee’s employment under this paragraph 6(f), the Company’s payment obligation to Employee shall be limited to all
compensation fully earned, and benefits fully vested as of the last date of Employee’s Continuous, Full-Time Active Employment
with the Company.

 
g.         Definition of “Cause”.  For purposes of this Agreement,  “Cause” shall have the following meaning:
 
(i)                                   Fraud, theft, embezzlement (or attempted fraud, theft, embezzlement), dishonest acts or illegal conduct (as

determined by a legal authority of a competent jurisdiction) ;
(ii)                                Other similar acts of willful misconduct of the Employee resulting in material adverse impact to the Company;
(iii)                             A material breach by the Employee of this Agreement;
(iv)                           Use of any controlled substance or use of alcohol, while in performance of one’s duties (except as part of a

Company sponsored event);
 

4

 
(v)                              A breach of a fiduciary duty that results in a material adverse impact to the Company or in personal profit to the

Employee (as determined by the Company based on its conflict of interest policies outlined in its Ethics Code);
(vi)                           Use of trade secrets or confidential information of the Company, other than in pursuit of  Company’s business;  or
(vii)                        Aiding a competitor of the Company.
 
h.         Definition of “Good Reason”.  For purposes of this Agreement, the Employee’s termination of his employment

with the Company for “Good Reason” shall mean (i) TeleTech’s breach of its material obligations under this Agreement and any
and all Exhibits hereto, and the failure of TeleTech to cure the circumstances of such breach within 30 calendar days of a written
notice from the Employee; or (ii) a change in the Employee’s role or responsibilities that would materially impact his ability to
effectively drive the performance of consulting business at TeleTech to enable him to delivery financial results necessary to create
value and earn incentives reasonably anticipated in paragraph 3(b) and Exhibit B of this Agreement.  The term “Good Reason”
does not refer to an ordinary course of business reorganization of TeleTech business segments where CSS is not a stand along
segment, nor does it involve a change in the reporting relationship for the role, as long as the Employee has the scope of
responsibilities necessary to drive operational and financial results for TeleTech’s consulting business.

 
7.         RELOCATION IS NOT REQUIRED.  The Company shall not require Employee to relocate until such time as is

mutually agreed to by both Employee and the Company.
 
8.         TRAVEL REQUIRED.  Company agrees that Employee will be permitted to travel in business class for international

travel exceeding 6 hours in duration.
 
9.         SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS.  The Company, its successors and assigns may in their sole discretion assign this

Agreement to any person or entity in connection with the merger, acquisition or other business combination that results in the
divestiture or transfer of all or substantially all the assets of the Company. This Agreement shall bind, and inure to the benefit of
the Company’s successors or assigns.  This Agreement is for personal services and the Employee shall not assign his rights or
obligations hereunder.

 
10.       GOVERNING LAW AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION.
 
a.         Employee and the Company agree that in the event of any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to

Employee’s employment with and/or separation from the Company, they shall negotiate in good faith to resolve the controversy or
claim privately, amicably and confidentially.  Each party may consult with counsel in connection with such negotiations.

 
b.         Governing Law. This Agreement will be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of

Colorado without regard to conflict of law principles.
 
c.         Disputes.  The parties agree that any action arising from or relating in any way to this Agreement, shall be resolved

and tried in the state or federal courts situated in Denver, Colorado. The parties consent to jurisdiction and venue of those courts
to the greatest extent allowed by law.

 



In this regard, the Employee acknowledges and admits to all or a combination of several following substantial contacts with
Colorado:  (i) the Employee is employed, provides services for or otherwise is affiliated with an legal entity headquartered in the
state of Colorado; (ii) the Employee receives the compensation in a form of Employee checks or wire transfers that are drawn
either directly or indirectly, from bank accounts in Colorado; (iii) the Employee regularly
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interacts with, contacts and is contacted by  other TeleTech employees and executives in Colorado; (iv) the Employee either
routinely travels to or attends business meetings in Colorado; and (v) the Employee receives substantial compensation and
benefits as a result of TeleTech being a corporation headquartered in and subject to the laws of Colorado.  Based on these and
other contacts, the Employee acknowledges that he could reasonably be subject to the laws of Colorado.

 
d.         Attorney’s fees. The party that substantially prevails in any action to enforce any provision of this Agreement shall

recover all reasonable costs and attorneys’ fees incurred in connection with the action.
 
11.       Non-Disclosure, Non-Competition and Non-Solicitation.  Employee agrees to execute, simultaneously with the

execution of this Agreement, the Company’s Agreement to Protect Confidential Information, Assign Inventions and Prevent Unfair
Competition and Unfair Solicitation (“Confidentiality Agreement”), incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit D.   In addition to the
provisions of the Confidentiality Agreement, the Employee in consideration of the employment opportunity and compensation
provided hereunder, agrees and covenants during the term of his affiliation with the Company (as an employee or otherwise):
 

a.         Non-Compete Undertaking. For a period of twelve (12) months from separation from the Company, without
TeleTech’s consent, not to work for or otherwise contribute his knowledge, directly or indirectly, in whole or in part, as an
employee, officer, owner, manager, advisor, consultant, agent, partner, director, significant shareholder (i.e. a shareholder holding
more than 5% of outstanding equity in the company), volunteer, intern or in any other similar capacity anywhere in the world to a
business entity engaged in the customer experience and customer engagement business substantially similar to TeleTech’s, its
subsidiaries and affiliates, including entities engaged in the full, or partial life cycle of customer strategy, analytics-driven,
technology-enabled customer engagement management solutions from customer engagement strategy consulting, to technology
and analytics driven customer acquisition to technology solution development and integration to business process outsourcing
customer care (collectively, “TeleTech Business”).  This Non-Compete Undertaking shall apply throughout, and shall be limited by,
the territory where the Employee performs services for the Company and TeleTech as provided in this Agreement.  For the
avoidance of doubt, the term ‘performs services for’ shall not be limited to ‘works at’ or any other limitation delineating where the
Employee performs the actual services, but instead shall related to the entire territory where the Company and TeleTech benefits
and is reasonable to expect to benefit from the Employee’s services. Given the Employee’s role as the Executive Vice President
for CSS business segment, and the world-wide reach of the CSS business, the territory for purposes of this Agreement shall be
worldwide.

 
b.         Employee Non-Solicitation Undertaking. For a period of twenty four (24) months from separation from the

Company, agrees not to solicit, hire, recruit, attempt to hire or recruit, or induce the termination of employment, directly or
indirectly, of any then current employee of the Company or its subsidiaries and affiliates; and

 
c.         Client Non-Solicitation Undertaking. For a period of twenty four (24) months from separation from the Company,

agrees not to solicit or interfere with business relationships between TeleTech and its current and prospective (currently actively
pursued) clients of TeleTech or any of its subsidiaries and affiliates for purposes of offering or accepting goods or services similar
to or competitive with those offered by TeleTech or any of its subsidiaries and affiliates.
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d.         Consequences of Breach. If the Employee breaches any of the covenants and undertakings set forth in this

paragraph 11:
 
(i)           All of the Employees unvested RSUs shall be immediately forfeited and neither TeleTech nor the Company shall have

any further liabilities to the Employee pursuant to this Agreement, including without limitation no liability for any
Performance-Based RSUs not yet granted or granted and unvested;

 
(ii)   The Employee and those who aid him in such breach shall be liable for all costs and business loses including any

damages and out of pocket expenses associated with or resulting from such breach; and
 
(iii) The Employee hereby consents and agrees that the Company and TeleTech shall be entitled to seek, in addition to

other available remedies, a temporary or permanent injunction or other equitable relief against such breach or
threatened breach from any court of competent jurisdiction, without the necessity of showing any actual damages or
that money damages would not afford an adequate remedy, and without the necessity of posting any bond or other
security. The aforementioned equitable relief shall be in addition to, not in lieu of, legal remedies, monetary damages or
other available forms of relief.

 
12.       IRSC Section 409A.
 
a.         Interpretation.  This Agreement shall be interpreted and administered in a manner so that any amount or benefit

payable hereunder shall be paid or provided in a manner that is either exempt from, or complies with, the requirements of
Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) and the Internal Revenue Service guidance and
Treasury Regulations thereunder (“Section 409A”).

 



b.         Separation from Service; Separate Payments.  Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, to
the extent that any payment or benefit constitutes non-exempt “nonqualified deferred compensation” for purposes of
Section 409A, and such payment or benefit would otherwise be payable or distributable hereunder by reason of Employee’s
termination of employment, all references to Employee’s “termination of employment” shall be construed to mean a “separation
from service,” as defined in Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-1(h), and Employee shall not be considered to have had a
termination of employment unless such termination constitutes a “separation from service” with respect to Employee.  If under this
Agreement, an amount is to be paid in two or more installments, for purposes of Section 409A, each installment shall be treated
as a separate payment.

 
c.         Specified Employee.  Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, if Employee is a “specified

employee” (within the meaning of Treasury Regulation Section 1.409A-1(i)) on the date of Employee’s “separation from service”,
any benefit or payment that constitutes non-exempt “nonqualified deferred compensation” (within the meaning of Section 409A)
shall be delayed in order to avoid a prohibited distribution under Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i), and any such delayed payment shall be
paid to Employee in a lump sum during the ten (10) day period commencing on the earlier of (i) the expiration of a six-month
period from the date of Employee’s “separation from service,” or (ii) Employee’s death.  To the greatest extent permitted under
Section 409A, any separate payment or benefit under the Agreement will not be deemed to constitute “nonqualified deferred
compensation” subject to Section 409A and the six-month delay requirement to the extent provided in the exceptions in Treasury
Regulation Sections 1.409A-1(b)(4) or 1.409A-1(b)(9), or in any other applicable exception or provision of Section 409A.
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d.         Reimbursements.  With regard to any provision in this Agreement that provides for reimbursement of costs and

expenses or in-kind benefits, except as permitted by Section 409A, (i) the right to reimbursement or in-kind benefits shall not be
subject to liquidation or exchange for another benefit, (ii) the amount of expenses eligible for reimbursement, or in-kind benefits,
provided during any taxable year shall not affect the expenses eligible for reimbursement, or in-kind benefits to be provided, in any
other taxable year, provided that the foregoing clause (ii) shall not be violated with regard to expenses reimbursed under any
arrangement covered by Section 105(b) of the Code solely because such arrangement provides for a limit on the amount of
expenses that may be reimbursed over some or all of the period the arrangement is in effect and (iii) such payments shall be
made on or before the last day of Employee’s taxable year following the taxable year in which the expenses were incurred.

 
e.         Cooperation.  If the parties hereto determine that any payments or benefits payable under this Agreement

intended to comply with Section 409A do not so comply, Employee and the Company agree to amend this Agreement, or take
such other actions as Employee and the Company deem necessary or appropriate, to comply with the requirements of
Section 409A, while preserving benefits that are, in the aggregate, no less favorable than the benefits as provided to Employee
under this Agreement.  If any provision of this Agreement would cause such payments or benefits to fail to so comply, such
provision shall not be effective and shall be null and void with respect to such payments or benefits, and such provision shall
otherwise remain in full force and effect.

 
13.       Miscellaneous.
 
a.         Severability. If any court of competent jurisdiction declares any provision of this Agreement invalid or

unenforceable, the remainder of the Agreement shall remain fully enforceable.  To the extent that any court concludes that any
provision of this Agreement is void or voidable, the court shall reform such provision(s) to render the provision(s) enforceable, but
only to the extent absolutely necessary to render the provision(s) enforceable.

 
b.         Modification of Agreement.  This Agreement or any other term or condition of employment shall not be modified

by word or deed, except in writing signed by the Employee and the Executive Vice President, Chief Administrative Officer or Chief
Executive Officer for TeleTech.

 
c.         Waiver.  No provision of this Agreement shall be deemed waived, nor shall there be an estoppel against the

enforcement of any such provision, except by a writing signed by the party charged with the waiver or estoppel.  No waiver shall
be deemed continuing unless specifically stated therein, and the written waiver shall operate only as to the specific term or
condition waived, and not for the future or as to any act other than that specifically waived.

 
d.         Construction.  Whenever applicable, masculine and neutral pronouns shall equally apply to the feminine genders;

the singular shall include the plural and the plural shall include the singular.  The parties have reviewed and understand this
Agreement, and each has had a full opportunity to negotiate the agreement’s terms and to consult with counsel of their own
choosing.  Therefore, the parties expressly waive all applicable common law and statutory rules of construction that any provision
of this Agreement should be construed against the agreement’s drafter, and agree that this Agreement and all amendments
thereto shall be construed as a whole, according to the fair meaning of the language used.

 
e.         Employee’s Representations and Warranties.  Employee represents and warrants, to the best of his knowledge,

that the Employee is not a party to any employment, non-competition or other agreement or restriction which could interfere with
the Employee’s
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employment with the Company or Employee’s or the Company’s or TeleTech’s rights and obligations hereunder, and that
Employee’s acceptance of employment with the Company and the performance of Employee’s duties hereunder will not breach
the provisions of any contract, agreement, or understanding to which Employee is a party or any duty owed by Employee to any
other person.

 



f.          Counterparts, Telecopies and PDFs.  This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, or by copies transmitted
by pdf or telecopier, which counterparts and/or facsimile transmissions shall have the same force and effect as had the contract
been executed in person and in original form.

 
g.         Return and/or Forfeiture of Compensation and Equity Grants.  Notwithstanding any other provision in this

Agreement or in the related RSU agreements, in the event that pursuant to the terms or requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002, the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010, or of any applicable laws, rules or regulations
promulgated by the US Securities and Exchange Commission or any listing requirements of any stock exchange or stock market
on which any securities of TeleTech trade, from time to time, and in the event any bonus payment, stock award or other payment is
based upon the satisfaction of financial performance metrics which are subsequently reversed due to a restatement or
reclassification of financial results of TeleTech, then any payments made or equity awards granted (and equity received pursuant
to these awards) shall be returned and forfeited to the extent required and as provided by applicable laws, rules, regulations or
listing requirements.  This paragraph 13(g) shall survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason.

 
h.         Controlling Provisions.  The employment arrangement contemplated by this Agreement includes other related

documents in addition to this Employment Agreement, some of which are TeleTech and the Company standard documents not
otherwise tailored to this transaction.  To the extent any provisions of these related agreements contradict the clear provisions and
terms of this Employment Agreement, the provisions of this Agreement shall be controlling.

 
Employee acknowledges and agrees: that he understands this Agreement; that he enters into it freely, knowingly, and
mindful of the fact that it creates important legal obligations and affects his legal rights; and that he understands the
need to consult concerning this Agreement with legal counsel of his own choosing, and has had a full and fair
opportunity to do so.
 
Employee:

 

TeleTech Services Corporation:
     
     
By:

  

By:
 

 

Robert N. Jimenez
  

Regina M. Paolillo. Chief Financial &
Administrative Officer

     
Date:

  

Date:
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Exhibit 31.1
 

CERTIFICATIONS
 

I, Kenneth D. Tuchman, certify that:
 

1.             I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of TeleTech Holdings, Inc.;
 
2.             Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary

to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this report;

 
3.             Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material

respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
 
4.   The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

 
a)        Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our

supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 
b)       Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under

our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 
c)        Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions

about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

 
d)       Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s

most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 
5.             The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

 
a)        All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are

reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 
b)       Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s

internal control over financial reporting.
 

Date: May 11, 2015
 

By: /s/ KENNETH D. TUCHMAN
 

Kenneth D. Tuchman
 

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
 

(Principal Executive Officer)
 



Exhibit 31.2
 

CERTIFICATIONS
 

I, Regina M. Paolillo, certify that:
 

1.             I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of TeleTech Holdings, Inc.;
 
2.             Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary

to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to
the period covered by this report;

 
3.             Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material

respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
 
4.   The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

 
a)        Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our

supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to
us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

 
b)       Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under

our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

 
c)        Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions

about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

 
d)       Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s

most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

 
5.             The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the
equivalent functions):

 
a)        All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are

reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
 
b)       Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s

internal control over financial reporting.
 

Date: May 11, 2015
 

By: /s/ REGINA M. PAOLILLO
 

Regina M. Paolillo
 

Chief Financial Officer
 

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
 



Exhibit 32.1
 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 

The undersigned, the Chief Executive Officer of TeleTech Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”), hereby certifies that, to his knowledge on the date
hereof:
 

(a)         the Form 10-Q of the Company for the quarter ended March 31, 2015 filed on the date hereof with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934;
and

 
(b)        the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the

Company.
 

By: /s/ KENNETH D. TUCHMAN
 

Kenneth D. Tuchman
 

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
 

Date: May 11, 2015
 



Exhibit 32.2
 

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES–OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 

The undersigned, the Chief Financial Officer of TeleTech Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”), hereby certifies that, to her knowledge on the date
hereof:
 

(a)         the Form 10–Q of the Company for the quarter ended March 31, 2015 filed on the date hereof with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934;
and

 
(b)        the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the

Company.
 

By: /s/ Regina M. Paolillo
 

Regina M. Paolillo
 

Chief Financial Officer
 
Date: May 11, 2015
 


